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~ ~ PARISSI P.s.c. 
-" Certified Publ ic Accountants, Tax & Business Advisors 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORTS 

To the Honorable Mayor and 
Members of the Municipal Legislature 
Autonomous Municipality of Caguas 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Autonomous 
Municipality of Caguas (the Municipality) as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, which 
collectively comprise the Municipality's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These 
financial statements are the responsibility of the Municipality's management. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perfonn 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used 
and the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in aH material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund infonnation of the Autonomous Municipality of Caguas as of June 30, 
2009, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the 
fiscal year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 31, 
2010, on our consideration of the (the Municipality)'s internal control over financial reporting and on our 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and 
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
perfonned in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the 
results of our audit. 

. . ·- -- ______ .. ____ ,_ . ... ....... -- · ··· · ----- ----···--· -····-· - -···-····· ... -- . ----. -·- ···- .. . . . 

650 Muiioz Rivera Ave .. Suite 502, San Juan, PR 00918-4149 • PO Box 195607, Halo Rey Station: San Ju;n, PR 00919-56.07 
Phone 787.641 .9801 • Fax 787 .641 .9809 • www.parissicpa.com 



The Management's Discussion and Analysis and budgetary comparison information for the general fund, 
as listed in the table of contents, are not a required part of the basic financial statements hut are 
supplementary information required by the Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United 
States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of 
management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary 
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise (the Municipality)'s basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management 
and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is 
not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all 
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

March 3 1, 2010 
San Juan, Puerto Rico 

Stamp No. 2483332 was affixed 
to the original of this report. 
License No. 88 Exp. December I, 2011 
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Autonomous Mu1'icipality of Caguas 
Management 's Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2009 

Financial Highlights 

To the Citizens and the Municipal Legislature 
of the Municipality of Caguas 

As management of the Autonomous Municipality of Caguas (hereafter the 
Municipality), we offer readers of the Municipality's financial statements this 
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Municipality for 
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. We encourage readers to read the information 
presented here in conjunction with the basic financial statements. 

• The assets of the Municipality exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by $392,798,494 
(net assets). 

• The government's total net assets, in the Government Activities increased by $7,222,012, and 
government's liabilities increased in by $35,916, I 05. These changes resulted in a decrease in total net 
assets by $28,694,093. 

• As of the close of the current fiscal year, the Municipality's governmental funds reported combined 
ending fund balances of $33, 141,538, as restated, after a total and combined net decrease of 
$20,319,912. 

• The Municipality's total general long-term debt increased by $21,044,472 during the current fiscal 
year. The key factor to this increase was $30.6 million of special loans used mostly for infrastructure 
development. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to The Municipality's basic financial 
statements. The Municipality's basic financial statements consist of three components; 1) govemment­
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements (see 
Figure 1). The basic financial statements present two different views of the Municipality through the use 
of government-wide statements and fund financial statements. In addition to the basic financial 
statements, this report contains other supplemental information that will enhance the reader's 
understanding of the financial condition of the Municipality. 

This Space Is Intentionally Left In Blank 
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Autonomous Municipality of Caguas 
Management 's Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2009 

Required Components of Annual Financial Report 
Figure 1 

Management's Basic 

Discussion and 
Financial Statements 

Analysis 

I I 
Government-wide Fund Notes to the 

Financial Financial Financial Statements 

Statements Statements 

Summary ------------+Detail 

Basic Financial Statements 

The first two statements (Pages 15 through 17) in the basic financial statements are the Government­
wide Financial Statements. They provide both short and long-term information about the Municipality's 
financial status. 

The next statements (Pages 18 through 28) are Fund Financial Statements. These statements focus on 
the activities of the individual parts of the Municipality's government. These statements provide more 
detail than the government-wide statements. There are three parts to the Fund Financial Statements: 1) 
the governmental funds statements; 2) the budgetary comparison statements; and 3) the proprietary fund 
statements. 

The next section of the basic financial statements is the notes to the financial statements. The notes to 
the financial statements explain in detail some of the data contained in those statements. 
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Autonomous Municipality of Caguas 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2009 

Government-wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of 
the Municipality's finances, similar in fonnat to a financial statement of a private-sector business. The 
government-wide statements provide short and long-term information about the Municipality's financial 
status as a whole. 

The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the Municipality of Caguas's assets and 
liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in 
net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Municipality of Caguas 
is improving or deteriorating. 

The Statement of Activities presents infonnation showing how the Municipality's net assets changed 
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event 
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and 
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods 
(e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). The Statement of Activities is focused on 
both the gross and net cost of various activities (including governmental, business-type, and component 
unit, if any). This is intended to summarize and simplify the reader's analysis of the revenues and costs of 
various Municipality activities and the degree to which activities are subsidized by general revenues. 

The government-wide statements are divided into two categories: I) governmental activities; and 2) 
business-type activities. The governmental activities include most of the Municipality's basic services 
such as public safety, parks and recreation, and general administration. Property taxes and state and 
federal grant funds finance most of these activities. The business-type activities are those that the 
Municipality charges directly to users to provide the service. These include Community Development 
Bank and Multitenant fund. 

The government-wide financial statements are included from pages 15 through 17 of this report. 

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements provide a more detailed look at the Municipality's most significant 
activities. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that 
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Municipality, like all other governmental 
entities in the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect compliance (or 
non-compliance) with finance-related legal requirements, such as the General Statutes or the 
Municipality's budget ordinance. All of the funds of the Municipality can be divided into two categories: 
governmental funds and proprietary funds. 

Governmental Funds - Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. Most of the Municipality's basic 
services are accounted for in governmental funds. These funds focus on how assets can readily be 
converted into cash flow in and out, and what monies are left at year-end that will be available for 
spending in the next year. 
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Autonomous Municipality of Caguas 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2009 

Governmental funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting. This 
method also has a current financial resources focus. As a result, the governmental fund financial 
statements give the reader a detailed short-term view that helps him or her determine if there are more or 
less financial resources available to finance the Municipality's programs. The relationship between 
government activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and 
governmental funds is described in a reconciliation that is a part of the fund financial statements (see page 
20). 

The Municipality adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as required by the General Statutes. The 
budget is a legally adopted document that incorporates input from the citizens of the Municipality, the 
management of the Municipality, and the decisions of the Municipal Legislature about which services to 
provide and how to pay for them. It also authorizes the Municipality to obtain funds from identified 
sources to finance these current period activities. The budgetary statement provided for the General Fund 
demonstrates how well the Municipality complied with the budget ordinance and whether or not the 
Municipality succeeded in providing the services as planned when the budget was adopted. The 
budgetary comparison statement uses the budgetary basis of accounting and is presented using the same 
format, language, and classifications as the legal budget document. The statement shows four columns: 
1) the original budget as adopted by the municipal legislature; 2) the final budget as amended by the 
municipal legislator; 3) the actual resources, charges to appropriations, and ending balances in the 
General Fund; and 4) the difference or variance between the final budget and the actual resources and 
charges (see page 24). 

Proprietary Funds - The Municipality has one kind of proprietary fund. Enterprise Funds are used to 
report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial 
statements. The Municipality uses enterprise funds to account for its Government Development Bank 
activity and for its multitenant operations. These funds are the same as those separate activities shown in 
the business-type activities in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statements of Revenues, Expenses and 
Changes in Net Assets (see Pages 25 through 27). 

Notes to the Financial Statements - The notes provide additional infonnation that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to 
the financial statements start on pages 29 through 64 of this report. 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis 

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as one useful indicator of a government's financial 
condition. The assets of the Municipality exceeded liabilities by $392,798,494 as of June 30, 2009. The 
Municipality's net assets decreased by $28,694,093 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. 

One of the largest portions ($404,844,806) reflects the Municipality's investment in capital assets (e.g. 
land, buildings, infrastructure, and equipment), less any related debt still outstanding that was issued to 
acquire those items. The Municipality uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; 
consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the Municipality's investment 
in its capital assets is reported net of the outstanding related debt, the resources needed to repay that debt 
must be provided by other sources, since the capital assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. An 
additional portion of the Municipality's net assets ($16, 171,912) represents resources that are subject to 
external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance is unrestricted. 

6 



Autonomous Municipality of Caguas 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2009 

The Municipality's Net Assets 
Figure? 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activities 

2009 2008 2009 2008 

Current and other assets $ 123,018,796 124,300,017 3,033,525 2,842,512 
Capital assets 539,083,843 533,978,824 17,155,385 13,006,233 
Loan receivable, net 2,5681192 2,8501537 

Total assets 66211021639 658,2781841 2217571102 18,699,282 

Current liabilities 73,626,080 59,397,633 834,596 157,736 
Other liabilities 217!525!731 19517741211 74!840 1551956 

Total liabilities 291, 151,811 2551171,844 909,436 313,692 

Net assets: 
Invested in capital assets, net of 
related debt 387,689,421 344,613,386 17, 155,385 13,006,233 
Restricted 16,171,912 50,130,569 
Unrestricted {32!910,505) 8!3631042 41692,281 5,379,357 

Total net ~ets $ 37019501828 40311061997 21,8471666 18,3851590 

This Space Is Intentionally Left In Blank 
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Total 
2009 2008 

126,052,321 127, 142,529 
556,239,228 546,985,057 

215681192 21850,537 
6841859,741 6761978, 123 

74,460,676 59,555,369 
21716001571 195,9301167 
292,0611247 2551485,536 

404,844,806 357,619,619 
16,171,912 50,130,569 

{281218!224} 13,742,399 
392, 7981494 421.492,587 



Autonomous Municipality of Caguas 
Management 's Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2009 

The Municipality's Changes in Net Assets 
Figure 3 

Governmental Business-type 
Activities Activitiel 

2009 2008 2009 2008 
Revenues: 

Program revenues: 
Charges for services s 873,472 614,207 346,570 358,703 
Operating grants and contri>utions 32,729,207 23,076,154 
Capital grants and contnoutions 2,736,340 60,901,514 1,061,000 

General revenues: 
Property taxes 45,200,224 53,966,882 
Volume of business 37,477,506 25,672,625 
Sales tax 19,653,668 18,978,615 
Intergovernmental 10,902,119 8,538,726 
Licenses and permits 4,935,551 4,463,529 
Interest and investment income 2,088,394 3,203,796 16,951 59,075 
Indirect costs 750,000 
Other 2351591 1,0211244 (4351919} 

Total revenues 156,832,072 201,187,292 {721398) 1,478,778 

Expenses: 
General government 43,407,060 36,885,789 
Public safety 9,965,172 10,734,003 
Public works 31,999,201 25,560,207 
Cultural and recreation 7,429,284 12,403,733 
Heahh and welfare 19,062,734 15,819,886 
Economic development 9,675,386 5,378,274 
Housing 18,836,679 12,405,463 
Sanitation and environmental 15,092,658 15,109,993 
Education 14,691,953 16,545,308 
Debt service 9,448,175 11,775,259 
Interest 
Loss on d~posal of capital asset 44,589 
Community Development Bank 614,851 195,895 
Multitenant 179,062 2061873 

Total expenses 179,6521891 16216171915 7931913 4021768 

Increase (decrease) in net assets before transfer (22,820,8 19) 38,569,377 (866,31 I) 1,076,010 
Transfer '31982,084) {276,682} 3,982,084 276,682 
Net increase (decrease) in net assets {26,802,903) 38,292,695 3, 115,773 1,352,692 

Net assets, beginning as previously reported 403, 106,997 360,947,165 18,385,590 13,132,022 
Prior period adjustments (5,3.53,266} 3,867,137 346,303 31900,876 
Net assets, beginning as restated 397, 753, 73 I 364,814,302 18.731,893 17,032,898 

Net assets, ending $ 37019501828 403, !061997 21,847,666 181385,590 

8 

Total 
2009 2008 

1,220,042 972,910 
32,729,207 23,076, 154 
2,736,340 61,962,514 

45,200,224 53,966,882 
37,477,506 
19,653,668 18,978,615 
10,902,119 8,538,726 
4,935,551 4,463,529 
2, 105,345 3,262,871 

750,000 
{200,328) 110211244 

156, 759,674 176,993,445 

43,407,060 36,885,789 
9,965,172 10,734,003 

31,999,201 25,560,207 
7,429,284 12,403,733 

19,062,734 15,819,886 
9,675,386 5,378,274 

18,836,679 12,405,463 
15,092,658 15,1 09,993 
14,691,953 16,545,308 
9,448,175 11,775,259 

44,589 
614,851 195,895 
179,062 206,873 

l 80, 446,804 163,020,683 

(23,687, 130) 39,645,387 

{23,687,130) 39,645,387 

421,492,587 374,079, 187 
{5,006,963) 7,768,013 
416, 485,624 381,847,200 

39217981494 42114921587 



Autonomous Municipality of Caguas 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2009 

Governmental activities. Governmental activities decreased the Municipality' s net assets by 
$32,156,169, thereby accounting for almost the total reduction in the net assets of the Municipality. Key 
elements of this decrease are as follows: 

• Total revenues decreased 22.05% over prior year reported. 

o Decrease in capital grants and contribution - a health care facility was received by the 
Municipality as a donation from the Puerto Rico Department of Health, with a value of 
$55,000,000. The capitalized value was recorded as a capital grant and contribution as per 
Government Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the Government Wide Financial 
Statement. For the current year, there is no such donation. 

o Decrease in property taxes - The Municipal Revenue Collection Center made certain deposits for 
amounts lower than the anticipated collections as of June 30, 2009. 

• Total expenses increased by 10.48%% over prior year 

o Major increases in expense includes: general government and public works. 

o Major decrease in expenses includes: cultural and recreation, health and welfare, and sanitation. 

Revenues by Source - Governmental Activities 

Property truces 
29% 

Capital grants and 
contributions 

2% 

and contributions 
21% 

Other 
5% 

~---

Other taxes 
36% 

Intergoverrunental 
7% 

Business-type activities: Business-type activities increased the Municipality's net assets by $3,462,076, 
amortizing the decrease in the government's net assets. 
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Autonomous Municipality of Caguas 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2009 

Revenues by Source - Business Type Activities 

Other 
55% 

Financial Analysis of the Municipality's Funds 

services 
45% 

As noted earlier, The Municipality uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance-related legal requirements. 

Governmental Funds. The focus of The Municipality's governmental funds is to provide information on 
near-terrn inflows, outflows, and balances of usable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the 
Municipality's financing requirements. Specifically, unreserved fund balance can be a useful measure of a 
government's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

At June 30, 2009, the governmental funds of the Municipality reported a combined fund balance of 
$33,141,538, as restated. This amount represents a decrease of fifty percent over last year. The primary 
reason for this reduction was the use of resources for major capital expenditures within the Municipality. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights: During the fiscal year, the Municipality revised the budget on 
several occasions. Generally, budget amendments fall into one of three categories: I) amendments made 
to adjust the estimates that are used to prepare the original budget ordinance once exact information is 
available; 2) amendments made to recognize new funding amounts from external sources, such as Federal 
and State grants~ and 3) increases in appropriations as a result of cash surplus from prior period to 
supplement capital projects funding and general government activities. Total amendments to the General 
Fund increase revenues by $178,250. 
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Autonomous Municipality of Caguas 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2009 

THE MUNICIPALITY'S BUDGET ACTIVITY 
FIGURE4 

Original Amendments Transfers Final 
Resources: 

Property taxes $ 36,172,158 178,250 36,350,408 
Volume of business taxes 26,500,000 26,500,000 
Sales taxes 16,259,697 16,259,697 
Licenses and permits 290,000 290,000 
Fines and penalties 2,000,000 2,000,000 
Cnterest and investment income 10,398,195 10,398,195 
lntergovemmental 6,311,000 6,311,000 
Parking lot fees 200,544 200,544 
Rent and other resources 10,948,582 10,948,582 

Amounts available for appropriation I 09,080, I 76 178,250 I 09,258,426 

Expenditures charged to appropriations: 
Culture and recreation 6,809,029 (344,292} 6,464,737 
Economic and social development 7,104,375 (2,397,480) 4,706,895 
Education 2,884,077 5,699 2,889,776 
General government 43,080,765 178,250 286,494 43,545,509 
Health and welfare 12,655,143 (395,445) 12,259,698 
Housing 1,033,835 (34,298) 999,537 
Sanitation and envirorunental 14,217,575 (522,196) 13,695,379 
Public safety 9,539,410 180,488 9,719,898 
Public works 11,755,967 3,221,030 14,976,997 

Total charges to appropriations 109,080,176 178,250 I 09,258,426 

Excess of resources over appropriations $ 

• The Municipal Legislature amended the budget during the year by $178,250, mainly by unreserved 
resources. 

• Actual budgetary transactions generated an excess of resources over appropriations of$5,245,731 due 
to the following: 

o An increase in resources in excess of budget by $ l, l 22,620 mainly in other rent and other 
resources 

o A decrease in appropriations by $4, 123, 111 mainly in a reduction of appropriations in Education, 
Sanitation and environment and Public works. 

Proprietary Funds. The Municipality's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in 
the government-wide statements but in more detail. Unrestricted net assets of the Community 
Development Bank at the end of the fiscal year amounted to $3,603,206, and those of the Multitenant 
Fund equaled $1,089,075. The total increase (decrease) in net assets for both funds was $(434,619) and 
$3,550,392, respectively. Other factors concerning the finances of these funds have already been 
addressed in the discussion of the Municipality's business-type activities. 
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Autonomous Municipality of Caguas 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2009 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capital assets. The Municipality's capital assets for its governmental and business -type activities as of 
June 30, 2009, totals $560,285,502 (net of accumulated depreciation). These assets include buildings, 
roads and bridges, land, machinery and equipment, park facilities, and vehicles. 

Major capital asset transactions during the year include: 

• Addition of construction in progress for infrastructure, buildings and facilities 

• Land acquisition and improvements 

• Purchased new equipment and vehicles for the Municipality as a whole 

• Disposal of old equipment 

CaeitaJ assets not being d~eciated 

Land and improvements s 
Construction in progress 
Works of art and historical treasures 

ToUI not being depreciated 

CaeitaJ assets net of del?reciation 
Facilities and improvements 
Buildin~ and improvements 
Roads and streets 
Equipment and vehicles 

Total net of depreciation 

Total capital assets net of depreciation s 

The Municipality's Capital Assets 
(net of depreciation) 

Figures 

Governmuul Biaiuess·type 
Activities Activities 

2009 2008 2009 2008 

46,5n,146 46,495,788 3,937,554 3,937,254 
33,041,929 87,330,153 6,493,694 

31428,661 3,402 461 
83,047,736 137,n8,402 31937,554 10,430,948 

25,732,265 13,590,047 
113,360, 129 81 ,597,193 13.217,363 2,573,788 
300,795,438 284,656,315 

16,148,275 16,9<>6,867 768 1197 
456,036, I 07 396,750,422 13~18,131 2,574,985 

539,083,843 533,978,824 17,155,685 n,oos,933 

Total 
2009 1008 

50,514,700 50,433,042 
33,041,929 93,823,847 

31428,661 3,402,461 
86,985~90 147,659,350 

25,732,265 13,590,047 
126,577,492 84,170,981 
300,795,438 284,656,315 

16,1491043 16,908,064 
469,254,238 3991325,407 

556~391528 546,984,757 

Additional information on the Municipality's capital assets can be found in note 6 of the Basic Financial 
Statements. 

Major additions to constructions in progress (disbursements of more than $800,000) as of June 30, 2009 
are as follows: 

Project 
Nuevo Centro de Gobiemo (Casa Alcaldia Fase 2) 

Edificio Ciencia y Tecnologfa 
Mejoras Geometricas en Avenidas J. Gautier Benitez, Cristobal Colony Georgetti 

Amount 
$ 1,283,755 

3,749,640 

2,750,000 
$ 7,783,395 

Long-term Debt. As of June 30, 2009, The Municipality had total bonded debt outstanding of 
$218,018,345 all of which is debt backed by the full faith and credit of the Municipality. 
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Autonomous Municipality o/Caguas 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2009 

The Municipality's Outstanding Debt 
General Obligation Bonds 

Figure 6 

Governmental Businw-typ~ 

Activities Activities 
2009 2008 2009 2008 

General obligation bonds s 115,180,680 121 ,032,680 224,165 279,435 
Federal loans and notes 6,555,000 7,605,000 
Special loans 96,058,500 68,056,758 
Total $ 217,794,180 196,694,438 224,165 279,435 

Total 
2009 2008 

I 15,404,845 121,312,115 
6,555,000 7,605,000 

96,058,500 681056,758 
218,018,345 196,973,873 

The Municipality's total debt increased by $21,044,472 (10.68 percent) during the past fiscal year, 
primarily due to $30,592,500 issued in special loans for infrastructure development. 

The Commonwealth of Puerto Rico limits the amount of general obligation debt that a unit of government 
can issue to 10 percent of the total assessed value of taxable property located within that government's 
boundaries. On March 2009, the Government of Puerto enacted the Special Act Declaring a State of 
Fiscal Emergency and Establishing an Integrated Fiscal Stabilizing Plan to Save the Credit of Puerto Rico 
(Public Law No. 7). Among other things this Law introduced a new way to view the Real Property 
assessment. Therefore, some change must be introduced in order to determine the legal debt margin of the 
Municipalities. Therefore, the Government Development Bank did not have available the total legal debt 
margin of the Municipality as of June 30, 2009. 

Also, the Municipality bas a Municipal Redemption Fund composed of .2% of the .5% of the total sales 
tax of 1.5%, to be used to grant loans for the exclusive benefit of the municipalities. This fund, in 
addition to other variables, is used to calculate the Municipality's borrowing power within a specific 
timeframe. The Municipality's borrowing margin for the audited year was approximately $29,000,000 
with a contribution to the fund (in the audited year) of approximately $2,660,009. 

Additional information regarding the Municipality's long-term debt can be found in note 7 beginning on 
page 46 of this audited financial report. 

Summary of Local Economy 

The Municipality of Caguas (Caguas) was founded in 1775 and is fifth largest of the municipalities of the 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the "Commonwealth" or "Puerto Rico") in tenns of population. Its 
boundaries encompass an area of approximately 59.07 square miles, and according to the 2007 Puerto 
Rico Community Survey the population of Caguas was 142,984. Caguas is bounded on the North by the 
Municipalities of San Juan and Trujillo Alto, on the South by the Municipalities of Cayey and San 
Lorenzo, on the East, by the Municipalities of Gurabo and San Lorenzo, and on the West by the 
Municipalities of Aguas Buenas and Cidra. 
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Autonomous Municipality of Caguas 
Management's Discussion and Analysis 
June 30, 2009 

The largest employers in Caguas are the State government, the Municipal government, Pfizer, Mova, 
Avon, Wal-Mart, Sam's Club and Amigo Supermarket retail chain, Banco Popular, HIMA-San Pablo 
Hospital, Mylan, and Atento (a marketing enterprise). 

The City's economy has an industry composition somewhat similar to the rest of the island's largest 
Municipalities. In the 1960s textile's manufacturing and agriculture made up the largest amount of the 
local economy, but by the mid seventies the manufacturing share of employment had declined to a lower 
percentage. 

Major Industries and Services (induding government) 

Government Services: The governmental service is the largest source of employment in the 
Municipality, accounting for the largest amount of the civilian employment in FY/09. This sector had a 
moderate grow at city level but it is being reduced at the State level since the last quarter of the fiscal year 
due to the economical weakness of the State. It is a diverse sector that includes jobs in the areas of 
education, electric power service, water supply, police, public works, culture and recreation, health, legal 
service and others. 

Health Services: As a major regional medical center, the medical services industry is one of the largest 
employers in the area. It includes HIMA-San Pablo Hospital and the former Regional Hospital, now 
named San Juan Bautista, operated by the private sector. These facilities provide primary, secondary and 
tertiary health services to the residents of Caguas and are responsible for establishing and developing 
strategies and programs designed to promote health, prevent diseases, promote early detection and 
diagnosis of health problems, promote adequate treatment of health problems and rehabilitation services. 

Caguas is included in the Commonwealth's Health Reform program. The Commonwealth's Health 
Reform program consists of providing comprehensive health insurance coverage for qualifying low 
income residents of Puerto Rico through a managed care system. Under the Health Reform program, the 
Government of Puerto Rico selects, through a bidding system, one private health insurance company in 
each of several designated regions of Puerto Rico and pays such insurance company the insurance 
premiums for each eligible beneficiary within such region. The municipalities pay the Government of 
Puerto Rico an amount mandated by law, to cover part of the insurance premium paid by the Government 
of Puerto Rico for its citizens. Caguas participates in this program not only as a health provider, through 
its facilities, but also as an Independent Provider Association (IPA) sharing with insurers the health 
insurance risk. 

The health services industry had been one of the fastest growing sectors in Caguas. During fiscal year 
2009, San Pablo HIMA Hospital almost completed the construction of a modem medical building and 
parking lot facilities. 

Trade (retail and wholesale): The trade sector is the strongest growing sector in the area. Many major 
national chains such as Wal-Mart, Costco, Walgreen's, Best Buy, Home Depot, and Office Depot have 
expanded into the area, helping maintain relatively stable levels of consumer spending. 

Construction: The construction in the private sector, an important source for the economic growth in 
Caguas, had experienced a decline during 2009 as well as the rest of the island and the continental US. 
Employment and gross receipts in construction continued declining for 2009 in tenns of new projects and 
housing developments. 
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Autonomous Municipality of Caguas 
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June 30, 2009 

Governmental initiative such as "Caguas Milenio", .. Nuevo Edificio Centro de Gobiemo", "Centro 
Interactivo de Ciencias, Matematica y Tecnologfa (C3Tec)" and other infrastructure development 
mentioned above, had to maintain this economic sector. However, the inventory of new homes remains 
almost unsold at year end. The total revenue of construction permits decrease in comparison to prior year. 

Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2010 

Governmental Activities: Property taxes (benefiting from residential and industrial developments), city 
tax, and revenues from permits and fees are expected to lead the increase in revenue projections (without 
considering any inter-fund transfer). The Municipality will use these increases in revenues to finance 
programs currently in place. 

Budgeted expenditures in the General Fund are expected to maintain unchanged as per prior year results. 
The largest increments are in employee compensation, including funding compensation and benefits 
adjustments, Capital Outlays and Public Works. 

Requests for Information 

This report is designed to provide an overview of the Municipality' s finances for those with an interest in 
this area. Questions concerning any of the information found in this report or requests for additional 
information should be directed to: Municipality of Caguas, Office of the Mayor, P.O. Box 907, Caguas, 
Puerto Rico, 00726-0907, or http://www.caguas.gov.pr. 

This Space Is Intentionally Left In Blank 
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Autonomous Municipality of Caguas 
Statements of Net Assets 
June 30, 2009 

Assets 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash with fiscal agent 

Accounts receivable: 
Volume of business tax 
Sales taxes 
Intergovernmental 
Federal grants 
License and pennits 
Rent and utilities 
Other accounts 

Internal balances 
Deferred debt issued costs 

Total current assets 

Non-current assets: 
Restricted cash and investments 
Loans receivable, net 
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 

Total non-current assets 

Total assets 

See notes to financial statements. 

Governmental 
Activities 

$ 3,088,091 
57,143,034 

15,513,100 
3,329,709 
5,135,255 

11,924,623 
504,435 
519,692 
165,308 
659,606 

1,267,393 

99,250,246 

23,768,550 

539,083,843 

562,852,393 

$ 662,102,639 
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Business-Type 
Activities Total 

3,033,525 6,121,616 
57,143,034 

15,513,100 
3,329,709 
5,135,255 

11,924,623 
504,435 
519,692 
165,308 

(659,606) 
1,267,393 

2,373,919 101,624,165 

23,768,550 
2,568,192 2,568,192 

17,155,385 556,239,228 

19,723,577 582,575,970 

22,097,496 684,200, 135 



Autonomous Municipality of Caguas 
Statements of Net Assets 
June 30, 2009 

Governmental 
Activities 

Liabilities and Net Assets 

Current liabilities: 
Accounts payable $ 16,025,718 
Accrued liabilities 1,281,797 
Volume of business tax deferred revenue 25,226,147 
Other deferred revenues 4,316,605 
Advance from other governments 3,529,833 
Accrued interest payable 3,779,472 
Bonds, notes payable and special loans 14,626,503 
Accrued compensated absences 1,550,000 
Due to other governments 2,362,680 
Advance deposits 927,325 

Total current liabilities 73,626,080 

Non current liabilities net of current portions: 
Bonds, notes payable and special loans 203,167,677 
Accrued compensated absences 9,756,880 
Accrued legal claims 2,322,517 
Due to other governments 2,278,657 

Total non-current liabilities 217,525,731 

Total liabilities 291,151,811 

Net assets: 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 387,689,421 
Restricted for: 

Housing programs 2,857,970 
Food and children programs 5,907,632 
Debt service 7,209,097 
Other special purposes 197,213 

Unrestricted p2,910,505) 

Total net assets 370,950,828 

Total liabilities and net assets $ 662, 102,63 9 

See notes to financial statements. 
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Business-Type 
Activities Total 

16,025,718 
25,665 1,307,462 

25,226,147 
4,316,605 
3,529,833 
3,779,472 

149,325 14,775,828 
1,550,000 
2,362,680 

927,325 

174,990 73,801,070 

74,840 203,242,517 
9,756,880 
2,322,517 
2,278,657 

74,840 217,600,571 

249,830 291,401,641 

17,155,385 404,844,806 

2,857,970 
5,907,632 
7,209,097 

197,213 
4,692,281 ~28,218,224l 

21,847,666 392,798,494 

22,097,496 684,200, 135 



Autonomous Municipality of Caguas 
Statements of Activities 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Charees for 
Functions/Pro11rams ~nses Services 

Governmental activities: 
General government $ 43,407,060 240,552 
Public safety 9,965,172 468,387 
Public works 31,999,201 -
Culture and recreation 7,429,284 -
Health and welfare 19,062,734 -
Economic and social development 9,675,386 145.214 
Housing 18,836,679 -
Sanitation and environmentnl 15,092,658 19,319 
Education 14,691,953 -
Interest 9,448,175 -

Total &overnmentnl activities: $ 179,608,302 - __ll3,47_2_ 

Business-type activities: 
Community Development Bank $ 61 4,851 173,268 
Multitenant 179,062 173,302 

Total business-type activities: $ 793,913 346,570 

General revenue: 
Property taxes 
Volume of business tues 
Sales taxes 
Intergovernmental 
Licenses and permits 
Interest and investment income 
Loss on disposal of capital assets 
Other 

Total general revenues 
Transfers-in (out) 
Changes in net assets 
Net assets - beginning (as previously reported) 
Prior period ai:ljustrnents 
Net assets - beginning (as rcstatei:I) 
Net assets - ending 

See notes to financial statements. 

Revenues 

Opera tine 
Grants and 

Contributions 

-
352,687 

-
-

3,049,446 
3,428,279 

14,069,799 
-

11 ,828,996 
-

_ _B,]J.9;201 

-
-
-
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Net Ellpense (Revenue) and Changes In Net Assets 

Capital grants Governmental Business-Type 
and contributions Activities Activities Total 

- (43,166,508) - ( 43, 166,508) 
- (9, 144,098) - (9,144,098) 

2,736,340 (29,262,861) - (29,262,861) 
- (7,429,284) - (7,429,284) 
- (16,013,288) - ( 16,013,288) 
- (6, 101,893) - (6,101,893) 
- (4,766,880) - ( 4, 766,880) 

- (15,073,339) - (I 5,073,339) 
- (2,862,957) - (2,862,957) 

- {9,448.175) - ~9,448, 175) 
2,736,340 (143,269,283) - (143,269,283) 

- - (441 ,583) (441,583) 
- - {5,760) {5,760) 
- - {447,343) {447,343) 

$ 45,200,224 - 45,200,224 
37,477,506 - 37,477,506 
19,653,668 - 19,653,668 
10,902,119 - 10,902,119 
4,935,551 - 4,935,551 
2,088,394 16,951 2,105,345 

(44,589) - (44,589) 
235~91 ~435,919) ~200,328) 

120,448,464 (4 18,968) 120,029,496 
p.982,084) 3.982,084 

~26.802,903) 3,115,773 (23,687, 130) 
403,106,997 18,385,590 421,492.587 
~5.353,266~ 346,303 iS.006,963) 

397,753,731 1817311893 416.485,624 
$ 370,950,828 2 1.847,666 392,798,494 



Autonomous Municipality of Caguas 
Governmental Funds Balance Sheet 
June 30, 2009 

Asseu Genenl 

Cash IOI cash equi\<8letts $ 3,088,091 
Cash "1th fiscal agent 17,700,000 
Volume ofblsio:ss taxreceiv.iilc 15,513,100 
Sales taxes receivable 3,329,709 
Intergo\Cmnental receivables 893,773 
Fe~ral grams receivable -
Due from other t'uOOi 11,107,198 
License and pcnnits receivable 504,435 
Rent receivable 397,192 
Oth::r accourts receiv.iilc -

Total assets $ 52,533,498 

See notes to financial statements. 

Hoiningand Public 
Rental Re&ideotial 

Program Administration 

2,208,912 106,072 
- -
- -
- -
- -

1,835,303 -
- 94,393 
- -
- -

16~603 -
4,206,llt_ 200,465 

Head Start 
Food and Other Total 
Oiildreo Capital Debt Governmental Governmental 
Program Project Service Le2islative Funds Funds 

39,491 18,349,909 - 358,136 2,706,030 26,856,641 
- 19,594,465 19,848,569 - - 57,143,034 
- - - - - 15,513,100 
- - - - - 3,329,709 
- 1,467,185 - 5,483 2,768,814 5,135,255 

6,082,395 3,869,632 - - 137,293 11,924,623 
- - - 950,000 1,750 12,153,341 
- - - - - 504,435 
- I 17,960 - - 4,540 519,692 

21705 - - - - 165J08 
_6,l~ _fil99J11_ _ 19,848,569 _ 1Jl3,6!9 5,618,427 133,245, 138 
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Autonomous Municipality of Caguas 
Governmental Funds Balance Sheet 
June 30, 2009 

Liabilities and Fund Balances General 

Liabilities: 
Accoonts payable and accrued 

liabilities s 10,388,425 
Advance from other governments -
Bo~ and notes payable -
lnte~ payable -
Due to other governments 1,703,678 
Due to other funds -
Deferred volume of business tax 35,649,604 
Deferred sales taxes revenue 2,122,353 
Deferred federal grant revenues -
Other defened revenues 1,496,981 
Advance ~sits 927,325 
Total liabilities 52,288,366 

fund bal811CCS: 
Reserved for =bnnces 4,383,200 
R~ed for housing programs -
Reserved for youth and children 
programs -

Reserved for debt service -
Reserved for capital projects -
Reserved for special projects -

Fund deficiency (4,138,068) 
Total fund balances 245,132 

Total liabilities and fund balances s 52,533,498 

See notes to financial statements. 

Housing and 
Rental 

Program 

151,533 
-
-
-
-

1,278,644 
-
-

1,835,303 
-
-

3,265,480 

-
941,338 

-
-
-
-
-

941,338 

4,206,818 

Public 
Residential 

Administration 

119,136 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

119,136 

-
81,329 

-
-
-
-
-

81,329 

200,465 

Head Start 
Food and Other Total 
Children Capital Debt Governmental Governmental 
Prognm ~ett Service Legislative Funds Funds 

135,989 4,307,105 - 360,791 562,739 16,025,718 
- 2,143,750 - - - 2,143,750 
- - 8,860,000 - - 8,860,000 
- - 3,779,472 - - 3,779,472 
- - - - 58,275 1,761,953 

80,970 7,230,513 - 927,665 1,975,943 I 1,493,735 
- - - - - 35,649,604 

- - - - - 2,122,353 
5,883,504 3,807,297 - - - 11,526,104 

- 1,467,185 - 5,485 2,843,935 5,813,586 
- - - - - 927.325 

6,100,463 18.955,850 12,639,472 1,293,941 5,440,892 100,103,600 

- - - - - 4,383,200 
- - - - - 1,022,667 

24,128 - - - - 24,128 
- - 7,2f/J,097 - - 7).r:B,097 
- 24,443,301 - - - 24,443,301 
- - - 19,678 177,535 197,213 
- - - - - ~4,138,068~ 

24,128 24,443,301 7J.09,f/J7 19,678 111,m 33,141,538 

6,124,591 43,399,151 19,848,569 1,313,619 5,618,427 133,245,138 
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Autonomous Municipality of Caguas 
Reconciliation of Fund Balance of Governmental Funds 
to Net Asset of Governmental Activities 
June 30, 2009 

Fund balance per Fund statements 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statements of net 
assets are different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial 

resource and not reported in funds 

Liabilities, including due to other government ($4,265,467), 
Christmas Bonus ($1,281, 797), compensated absences 

($11 ,306,880) and legal claims ($2,322,517) are not due and 
payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the 

funds. 

Other economic resources not available to pay current year 
expenditures, but collectible after the period of availability, are not 
reported in the funds 

Debt issued by the Municipality have associated costs that are paid 
from current available financial resources in the funds. However, 
these costs are deferred on the statements of Net Assets 

General obligation bonds, special and federal loans are not due and 

payable in the current period and therefore not reported in the funds 

Net assets of governmental activities 

See notes to financial statements. 
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$ 33,141,538 

539,083,843 

(19,176,661) 

25,568,895 

1,267,393 

(208,934,180) 

$ 370,950,828 



Autonomous Municipality of Caguas 
Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
Governmental Funds 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 

lloasing llld Public 
Raital Raidentill 

~aeral Progrtm Administrstlon 

RC\'Cllues: 
Property laXCS s 34,049,865 - -
Volume of business laXes 27,054,049 - -
Sales tax 14,871,306 - -
Licenses and permits 4,026,774 - -
Federal pts - 8,550,764 760,237 
Fines and penalties 468.387 - -
Interest and investment income 1,447,261 58,088 1,841 
lntergovemmcnw 10,902.119 4,752,357 6,441 
Parking lot fees 199.372 - -
Rent 55,967 - -
Solid waste dispc»al 19,319 - -
Other 120,543 - -
Total revenues 93,214,962 13.361.209 768,519 

Expenditures: 
General government 36,270,760 - -
Public safety 9,356,498 - -
Public ..orlcs 14,338,876 - -
Culcwe and recreation 6.355,768 - -
Health and welfare 12,094.724 - -
Eoonomic and social development 2,588,210 - -
Housing 1,077,275 15,61 1,920 992,702 
SWWioo and environmental 14,530,251 - -
Education 2,266,203 - -
Capital outlays 1,426,144 41,502 5,552 
Debt service payments: 
Principal 388,581 - -
ln1mst 181.626 - -
Tocal ccpenditurcs 100,874,916 lS,653,422 998,254 

Deficiency of m'CDUCS 

over expenditures s (7,659,9S4} (2,292,213) (229,735) 

See notes to financial statements. 

llead Start 
Food Hd 
Children 
PrO&!:!lll 

-
-
-
-

11,828,996 
-

20,119 

-
-
-
-

2,033 
11 ,851,148 

-
-
-
-

538,543 

-
-
-

11,290,194 
342,8S4 

-
-

12,171..51!_ 

(320,443) 
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Otber 
Capital Debt Govenimental 
Project Serviu -15!!1alive F•nds Totals 

- 11,150,359 - - 45,200,224 

- - - - 27,0S4,049 
- 2,660,009 - - 17,531,315 

7,150 - - - 4,033.924 
3,428,279 - - 1,883,262 26,451.538 

- - - - 468,387 
534,797 5,903 6,781 13,604 2,088,394 

l,676,729 - 1,059,611 1.518,871 19,916,128 
- - - 41,180 240,552 

79,650 - - 9,597 145,214 
- - - - 19,319 

- - - 113,015 235,591 
5,726,605 13,816,271 1,066,392 3 579 529 143,384,635 

410 - 35,454 528.438 36,835,062 
- - - 134,454 9,490,952 

4,884,600 - 2,154,595 1,933,140 23,311,211 
531,079 - - 292,400 7,179.247 
111,855 - - 1,797.931 14,543.053 

1,621,841 - 75,227 37,559 4,322,837 
766,950 - 98 30,797 18,479,742 
73,401 - - 174,132 14,m ,784 
57,000 - 3,343 l,050,189 14,666,929 

24,464,080 - - 953,583 27,233,715 

- 11,023,758 - - 11,412,339 

- 9,266,549 - - 9,448,175 
32,SllJ16 20,290,307 2,268,717 6,932,623 191,701,046 

(26,784,611) (6,474,036) (1,202,325) (3,353,094) (48,316,411) 



Autonomous Municipality o/Caguas 
Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
Governmental Funds 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Head Start 
Housing and Public Food and 

Rtotll Raidentill Children 
General ~m Admin.i.rtntioo 

- ·- ------
Progl'llll 

Deficiency of expenditures 
om n:YC!lues $ (7,659,954) (2,292,213) (229,735) (320,443) 

Other fuwicings !Oun:cs (uses) 
Proceeds from deli issuana: 21,280,500 - - -
Advances from other governments 1,386,083 - - -
Operating tramfer in 10,001 10,435 - 476,441 

Operating transfer out (8,969,838) - - -
Other fuwic~ sources, m 13,706,746 10,435 - __ 476,•41 

Exceeds (deficiency) Of n:VCDUCS and 
other financing sourtes over expenditures 
and other financing uses 6,046,792 (2,281,778) (229,73~ __ 155,998 

Fund balances at beginning of 'Jf:M 
(as previously rqxx1cd) 8,363,042 2,SOS,011 192,586 1,461,284 

Prior period adjustment ~14,164,702) 718,045 118,478 (1,593, 154) 
Fund baJanccs at beginning of year (as restated) (S,801,660) 3,223,116 311,064 (131,870) 

Fund balancts at end of 'Jf:M s 245,132 941,338 _!!J29 24,128 

See notes to financial statements. 
~~( 
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Other 
CapitJI Debt Governmental 
Project Service -~lative Funds Tottil 

(26,784,611) (6,474,03§ ( 1,202,325) (3,353,094) (48,316,411) 

9,312,000 - - - 30,592,SOO 
- - - - 1,386,083 

946,156 1,1(JJ,rm 151,000 1,356,064 10,710,169 
~S,019,502i - (617,713) (85,200) (14,692,253) 

.. _l,238,654 1,1(JJ,(!J]._ (466,713) 1,270,864 27,996,499 

(21,545,957) __ 1,286,036 _(1,669,038) (2,082,230) (20,319,912) 

52,239,443 3,941,040 - l,048,(JJ4 69,751,070 
(6,250,18~ 1,982,021 1,688,716 1,211,161 (16,289,620) 
45,989,258 __ 5,923,061 1,688,716 2,259,765 53,461,450 

~~,301 1).ff},r!ll 19,678 177,535 33,141,538 



Autonomous Municipality of Caguas 
Reconciliation of the Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
Governmental Funds to the Statements of Activities 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Net change in fund balance - total governmental funds 

Amounts reported in the statements of activities are different because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the 
statements of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their 
estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which 
capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period. 

Impairment of capital assets are expensed in the statement of activities but 
not reported in the governmental funds as such impairment does not require 
the use of current financial resources. 

Revenue in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial 
resources are not reported as revenue in the governmental funds. 

Debt and advances proceeds provide current financial resources to 
governmental funds, but issuing debt and advances increases long-tenn 
liabilities in the statement of net assets. Repayment of debt principal is an 
expenditure in the govemmentalfunds, but the repayment reduces long -tenn 
liabilities in the statement of net assets. This is the amount by which net 
proceeds ($31,978,583) exceeded repayments $11,412,339. 

Debt issuance costs are expenditures to governmental funds, but are deferred 
assets in the statements of net assets. This is the amount of debt issue costs 
for the vear. 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use 
of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures 
in the governmental funds. This is the amount by which the net increases in 
accurued compensated absences ($1,312,053), loss on disposition of capital 
assets ($44,589) and liability for claim and judgements ($2,214,917) 
exceeded the net decreases in liability to other governmental agencies 
$188.604. 

Change in net assets of governmental activities 

See notes to financial statements. 
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$ (20,319,912) 

5,149,608 

12,313,598 

(20,566,244) 

3,002 

(3,382,955) 

$ (26,802,903) 



Autonomous Municipality of Caguas 
Statements of Revenues and Expenditures Budget and Actual - General Fund 
Non GAAP Budgetary Basis 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Actual amounts Variance 
in the Favorable 

Original Budget Final Budget Budgetaiy Basis (Unfavorable} 
Resources: 

Property taxes $ 36, 172,158 36,350,408 35,435,948 (914,460) 

Volume of business taxes 26,500,000 26,500,000 27,054,049 554,049 

Sales taxes 16,259,697 16,259,697 14,871,306 (1,388,391) 

Fines and penalties 290,000 290,000 468,387 178,387 
Interest and investment income 2,000,000 2,000,000 1,447,261 (552,739) 
Intergovernmental 10,398,195 10,398,195 10,902,119 503,924 
Licenses and permits 6,311,000 6,311,000 4,026,774 (2,284,226) 
Parking lot fees 200,544 200,544 199,372 (1,172) 

Rent and other resources 1029481582 1019481582 1519751830 510271248 
Amounts available for appropriation 109,080,176 109,258,426 110,381,046 __ 1, 122,620 

Expenditures charge to appropriations: 
Culture and recreation 6,809,029 6,464,737 6,260,224 204,513 
Economic and social development 7,104,375 4,706,895 4,547,189 159,706 
Education 2,884,077 2,889,776 2,246,793 642,983 
General government 43,080,765 43,545,509 43,521,578 23,931 
Health and welfare 12,655,143 12,259,698 11,953,985 305,713 
Housing 1,033,835 999,537 954,357 45,180 
Sanitation and environmental 14,217,575 13,695,379 12,895,739 799,640 
Public safety 9,539,410 9,719,898 9,566,447 153,451 
Public works 111755,967 1429761997 1311891003 127872994 

Total charges to appropriations 10910802176 10912582426 10521351315 421232111 

Excess of resources over appropriations $ - - 5 245,73_1_ 5,245,731 

See notes to financial statements. 
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Autonomous Municipality of Caguas 
Statements of Net Assets - Proprietary Funds 
Ended June 30, 2009 

Assets 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Total current assets 

Non current assets: 
Loans receivable, net 
Capital assets: 

Land and improvements 
Building and improvements 
Equipment 
Less: Accumulated depreciation 

Capital assets, net 

Total non current assets 

Total assets 

See notes to financial statements. 

Community 
Development 

Bank 

$ 1,765,538 

1,765,538 

2,568,192 

33,603 
(33,603) 

2,568,192 

$ 4,333,730 
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Multi tenant 
Buildings Totals 

1,267,987 3,033,525 

1,267,987 3,033,525 

2,568,192 

3,937,254 3,937,254 
13,721,690 13,721,690 

2,145 35,748 
(505,704) (539,307) 

17,155,385 17,155,385 

17,155,385 19,723,577 

18,423,372 22,757,102 



Autonomous Municipality ofCaguas 
Statements of Net Assets - Proprietary Funds 
Ended June 30, 2009 

Community 
Development 

Bank 
Liabilities and Net Assets 

Liabilities: 
Current liabilities: 
Notes payable (current portion) $ 149,325 
Due to other fund 496, 142 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 10,217 

Total current liabilities 655,684 

Non current liabilities: 
Notes payable (net of current portion) 74,840 

Total liabilities 730,524 

Net assets: 

Investments in capital assets 
(net of related debt) 

Unrestricted 3,603,206 

Total net assets 3,603,206 

Total liabilities and net asstes $ 4,333,730 

See notes to financial statements. 
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Multitenant 
Buildings Totals 

149,325 
163,464 659,606 
15,448 25,665 

178,912 834,596 

74,840 

178,912 909,436 

17,155,385 17,155,385 

1,089,075 4,692,281 

18,244,460 21,847,666 

18,423,372 22,757,102 



Autonomous Municipality of Caguas 
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets 
Proprietary Funds 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Community 
Development 

Bank 
Operating revenue: 

Rent, interest on loans and origination fees $ 173,268 
Operating expenses: 

Payroll 13,980 
Depreciation 
Professional fees 125,665 
Bank service charges 5,510 
Bad debt expense 443,296 
Repairs and maintenance 
Rent 20,400 
Utilities 6,000 
Other 

Total operating expenses 614,851 

Loss before contributions and transfers (441,583) 
Non-operating revenues (expenses): 

Interest income 9,897 
Other 
Contributions to corporations 
Interest expense (2,933) 

Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 6,964 

Loss before contributions and transfers (434,619) 

Transfers from governmental funds 
Transfers to govenunental funds 

Changes in net assets (434,619) 

Net assets at beginning of fiscal year 
(as previously reported) 4,127,484 
Prior period adjustments (89,659) 

Net assets at beginning of fiscal year (as restated) 4,037,825 
Net assets at end of fiscal year $ 3,603,206 

See notes to financial statements. 
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Multitenant 
Buildings Totals 

173,302 346,570 

13,980 
61,274 61,274 
80,450 206,115 

5,510 
443,296 

10,369 10,369 
20,400 

6,000 
26,969 26,969 

179,062 793,913 

(5,760) (447,343) 

9,987 19,884 
34,081 34,081 

(470,000) (470,000) 
(2,9332 

(425,932) (418,968) 

(431,692) (866,311) 

4,132,084 4,132,084 
(150,000) (150,000) 
3,982,084 3,982,084 
3,550,392 3,115,773 

14,258,106 18,385,590 
435,962 346,303 

14,694,068 18,731,893 

18,244,460 21,847,666 



Autonomous Municipality of Caguas 
Statements of Cash Flows 
Proprietary Funds 
June 30, 2009 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Receipts from customers $ 

Disbursements ofloans 
Payments to suppliers and professional services 
Payments to employees 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 

Cash flows used in capital activities-
Qlpital assets investments 

Net cash used in capital activities 

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities 
Principal payments on notes payable 
Interest payments in notes payable 
Contributions to corporations 
Other 

Transfer from governmental funds 
Increase in loan due to general fund 

Net cash provided by 
non-capital financing activities 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Interest income 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of fiscal year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of fiscal year 

Reconciliation of operating loss to net 
cash used in operating activities: 

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to 
net cash used in operating activities: 
Operating Joss 
Depreciation 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 
Decrease in rent and Joan receivable 

Net cash used in operating activities $ 

See notes to financial statements. 
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Community 
Development Multitenant 

Bank Buildin~ Totals 

173,268 188,029 361,297 

(160,951) (160,951) 

(166,473) (117,482) (283,955) 

~13,980) (13,980) 

(168,136) 70,547 (97,589) 

(4,210,426) (4,210,426) 

(4,210,4262 (4,210,426) 

(55,270) (55,270) 

(2,933) (2,933) 

(470,000) (470,000) 

34,081 34,081 

3,982,084 3,982,084 

266,322 591,243 857,565 

208,119 4,137,408 4,345,527 

9,897 9,987 19,884 

9,897 9,987 19,884 

49,880 7,516 57,396 

1,715,658 1,260,471 2,976,129 

1,765,538 1,267,987 3,033,525 

(441 ,583) (5,760) (447,343) 

61,274 61,274 

(8,898) 306 (8,592) 

282,345 14,727 297,072 

(168,136~ 70,547 (97,589) 



Autonomous Municipality of Caguas 
Notes to Financial Statement 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The Municipality of Caguas (the Municipality), was founded in 1775, and operates as a governmental 
unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico under the Law No. 81 of August 30, 199 l, known as the 
"Autonomy Municipalities Laws of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico". It is governed by a Major 
and a 16 member Municipal Legislature elected for a four-year term. The Municipality provides 
services to its residents in the areas of health, public works, education, public safety, urban 
development, economic development, culture and recreation, and other general and administrative 
services. 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in confonnity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Financial Reporting Entity 

In evaluating how to define the Municipality for fmancial reporting purposes, management has 
considered all potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the 
reporting entity was made by applying the provisions of Statement No. 14 of the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) as amended by GASB No. 39, "Determining whether Certain 
Organizations are Component Unit" - and amendment of GASB Statement No. 14. The basic, but not 
the only criterion for including a potential component unit within the reporting entity, is if elected 
officials of a primary government are financially accountable for the entity. Financial accountability 
exists if the primary government appoints a voting majority of the entity's governing body and if 
either one of the following conditions exist; the primary government can impose its will on the other 
entity or the potential exists for the other entity to (I) provide specific financial benefits to or (2) 
impose specific financial burdens on the primary government. A second criterion used in evaluating 
potential component units is if the nature and significance of the relationship between the entity and a 
primary government are such that to exclude the entity from the financial reporting entity would 
render the financial statements misleading or incomplete. 

GASB No. 39 provided additional guidance to determine whether certain organization for which the 
primary government is not financially accountable should be reported as components units. A legally 
separate, tax-exempt organization should be discretely presented as a component unit if all of the 
following criteria are met: (a) the economic resources received or held by the separate organization 
are entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of the primary government, its component units, 
or its constituents; (b) the primary government, or its component units, is entitled to, or has the ability 
to otherwise access, a majority of the economic resources received or held by the separate 
organization, and; (c) the economic resources received or held by an individual organization that he 
specific primary government, or its component units, is entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise 
access, are significant to the primary government. 

There are two methods or presentation of the component unit in the financial statements: blending -
the financial data of the component unit's balances and transactions in a manner similar to the 
presentation of the Municipality's balance; and discrete - presentation of the component unit's 
financial data in column separate from the Municipality's balances and transactions. 
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Autonomous Municipality of Caguas 
Notes to Financial Statement 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

The relative importance of each criterion must be evaluated in light of specific circumstances in order 
to determine which component units are to be included as part of the reporting entity. Our specific 
evaluations of the criteria applicable to the Municipality indicate no organizations meet the criteria to 
be included as component units. Accordingly, these basic financial statements present only the 
Municipality as the reporting entity. 

These financial statements present the respective financial position of the governmental activities, 
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund infonnation of the 
Municipality, as of June 30, 2009, and the respective changes in financial position, where applicable, 
thereof for the fiscal year then ended. Based on the above criteria the Municipality does not have 
component units to include within its reporting entity. 

In June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued GASB Statement No. 
34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local 
Governments. GASB No. 34 significantly changed the way in which the Municipality reported its 
finances. 

GASB No. 34 established two bases for reporting financial information: government-wide financial 
statements and fund presentation. The government-wide financial statements method adopts the flow 
of economic resources measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting for both governmental 
activities and business-type activities. The basis for preparing fund financial statements is similar to 
conventional governmental financial statements except the focus for presentation is on major funds 
rather than fund types. Capital assets, including infrastructure assets, and depreciation charges are 
reported on the entity- wide perspective financial statements. The management's discussion and 
analysis information precedes the basis financial statements but is considered required supplementary 
information. Budgetary infonnation is no longer presented in the financial statements but rather is 
presented as required supplementary inf onnation. 

The Municipality implemented this statement in fiscal year ended June 30, 2003. 

Basic Financial Statements GASB Statement No. 34 

Government -Wide Financial Statements: 

The focus of the government wide financial statements is on the overall financial position and 
activities of the Municipality as a whole. The government wide financial statements will provide with 
the following: 

• Present financial infonnation about the overall government without presenting information 
about the individual funds or fund types. 

• Differentiate between the Municipality's governmental activities and business type activities. 

• Measure and present all financial balances and activities based on the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. 

The flow of economic resources measurement and accrual accounting are the basis upon which 
government wide financial statements are prepared. Under the flow of economic resources 
measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and 
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Autonomous Municipality of Caguas 
Notes to Financial Statement 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

expenses are recognized when incurred when these activities are related to exchange and exchange 
like activities. In addition, long-lived assets are capitalized and depreciated over their estimated 
economic lives. 

The government-wide statements include the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of 
Activities: 

Statement of Net Assets: 

Presentation of assets and liabilities - Assets and liabilities should be presented in the statement 
of net assets based on their relative liquidity. The liquidity of the assets is determined based their 
ability to be converted in cash and the absence of any restriction that might limit their conversion 
to cash. The liquidity of liabilities is based on maturity dates or expected payment dates. 

Presentation of capital assets - The governmental entity should report all of its capital assets in 
the statement of net assets, based on their original historical cost. Capital assets that have been 
donated should be capitalized at their estimated fair value at the date of the receipt. 

Presentation of long-tenn liabilities - Long-tenn liabilities include debts such as bonds, notes, 
and federal Joans. In addition, operating liabilities such as compensated absences and claims must 
be reported in the statement of net assets. 

Presentation of component of net assets - Net assets represent the difference between the 
Municipality's total assets and its total liabilities. The statement of net assets must identify the 
components of the net assets, namely (a) invested in capital assets, net of related debt; (b) 
restricted net assets; and (c) unrestricted net assets. 

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt is the difference between capital assets (net of 
accumulated depreciation) and liabilities attributable to the acquisition, construction or 
improvement of those assets. 

Restricted net assets arise if either of the following conditions exists: (a) externally imposed by 
creditor, granters, contributors or laws and regulations of other governments or (b) imposed by 
law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

Assets that are not classified as invested in capital assets (net of related debt) or restricted are 
included in the category of unrestricted net assets. 

Statement of Activities: 

Revenues and other financing inflows - A fundamental concept in the presentation of the 
statement of activities is the identification of resources inflows to the Municipality that are related 
to specific programs and those that are general in nature. Revenues are divided in program 
revenues and general revenues. 

Program revenues - Program revenues are those that are identified with a specific function, 
otherwise the revenues would not flow to the Municipality. As established before, program 
revenues are presented in the statement of activities as a subtraction of related program expenses 
in order to identify the net cost or benefit of a particular program. Program revenues are divided 
in charges for services, operating grants and contributions and capital grants. 
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Notes to Financial Statement 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

General revenues - General revenues included resources that are not specifically related with a 
specific function, but that are used in the operation of the Municipality. 

Expenses - The Municipality reports expenses, including depreciation expense by function. 
Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a service, program or department 
and are clearly identifiable to a particular function. 

Generally, the cost (net of estimated salvage value) of capital assets should be depreciated over 
their estimated useful lives. Depreciation expense is reported as direct expense of the specific 
functional category with which the related capital asset has relationship. 

Fund Financial Statements: 

Fund based financial statements are included in order to demonstrate that restrictions imposed by 
statutes, regulations, or contracts have been followed. The Municipality has the following major 
funds: 

Governmental Funds - These financial statements have a short tenn emphasis and generally measure 
and account for cash and other assets that can easily be converted to cash and are used to account for 
the Municipality's expendable financial resources and the related liabilities. The measurement focus is 
upon detennination of any changes in financial position. The Municipality's major funds are the 
following: 

General Fund 

The general fund is used to account for all financial transactions, except those required to be 
accounted for in another fund. 

Housing and Rental Programs 

Accounts for current financial resources restricted mainly for housing rental programs to low and 
very low income family units. Resources are funded by the United States Department of Housing 
and Urban Development, mainly through the Section 8 Housing Voucher and Home Investment 
Partnership Programs. 

Head Start Food and Children Program 

It was previously reported as Head Start Youth and Children funds. Accounts for current financial 
resources restricted for the education of pre-school aged children that are mainly funded by the 
United States Department of Health and Human Services and the United States Department of 
Agriculture. 

Capital Projects 

Capital projects fund is used to account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or 
construction of major capital facilities, other than those financed by proprietary funds. 
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For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Debt Service Funds 

The debt service fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment 
of, general long-term debt principal, interest and related costs. 

Legislative Funds 

The legislative funds account the accumulation of resources approved by the Legislature of the 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico designated for the investment of such in special projects related 
mainly with health and welfare, public works, economic development and others as requested by 
the Municipality's citizenship. 

Public Residential Administration 

On March 26, 2003, the Municipality entered into an Intergovernmental Management Agreement 
with the Puerto Rico Public Housing Administration (PRPHA). The purpose of the Agreement 
was to designate the Municipality to act as independent contractor for the PRPHA to manage, 
administer and operate the low income housing project denominated as Jose Gautier Benitez, 
under the United States Housing Act of 1937, as amended. The Project is located at State Road 
No. 1, behind Villa del Carmen Shopping Center, Caguas, Puerto Rico. 

As part of the Agreement, the Municipality submits, on the l st day of February of each year, an 
Annual Management Plan in which it delineates its proposed budgets for the year and any work to 
be perfonned in the Project. 

The Municipality operates the Program using fiscal periods beginning on July 1st and ending 
June 30th. 

Other Governmental Funds 

It was previously reported as Other Special Revenue funds. Current financial resources used to 
account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than debt service or capital projects) such 
as federal grants, that are legally restricted to expenditures for various specified purposes. 

The financial statements of the governmental funds are the following: 

Balance Sheet - Reports infonnation at June 30, 2009 about the current financial resources 
(assets, liabilities and fund balances) of each major governmental fund . 

Statement of Revenues. Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Reports information about 
the inflows, outflows and balances of current financial resources of each major governmental 
fund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. 

Proprietary Funds - Financial statements for proprietary funds are based on the flow of economic 
resources (measurement focus) and the accrual basis of accounting. They are used to account for 
activities, which are similar to operations in the private sector. The proprietary fund type consists of 
enterprise funds. 
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Enterprise Funds 

The enterprise funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner 
similar to private business enterprises where the intent is that the cost of providing goods and services 
(including depreciation) be financed or recovered primarily through user charges, or where the 
Municipality has decided that periodic detennination of revenues earned and expenses incurred is 
appropriate. The Municipality's enterprise funds follows: 

Community Development Bank - Accounts for the economic resources designated mainly for the 
approval of loans for economic development, education and emergency in the benefit of the 
Caguas citizenship. 

Multitenant Buildings (previously reported as Multitenant Funds) - Accounts the deposit of rental 
resources designated for the Municipality's normal operation other than those functions 
accounted in the general fund. 

The financial statements of the proprietary funds are the following: 

Statement of Net Assets or Balance Sheet - Assets and liabilities are presented in a classified 
fonnat to distinguish between current and long term assets and liabilities. 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Net Assets - Revenues and expenses are 
reported by distinguishing between operating and non-operating revenues and expenses. 

Statement of Cash Flows - The primary purpose of the statement of cash flows is to provide 
relevant information about the cash receipts and disbursements of the Municipality during the 
fiscal year. The information of the statement of cash flows should help financial report users 
assess (a) Municipality's ability to generate future net cash flows; (b) ability to meet its obligation 
as they come due; (c) its needs for external financing; (d) the reasons for differences between 
operating income and associated cash receipts and disbursements and the effects on the entity's 
financial position of operating, capital and related financing activities, non-capital related 
financing activities and investment activities during the period. 

Basis of Accounting 

The basis of accounting determines when the Municipality recognizes revenues and 
expenditures/expenses and related assets and liabilities. Governmental fund types follow the modified 
accrual basis of accounting. Under this basis of accounting, revenues are recorded in the accounting 
period in which they become susceptible to accrual, that is, when they become both measurable and 
available. Available is defined as expected to be collected within the current period or soon enough 
thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. 

In applying the susceptible to accrual concept to governmental revenues, there are essentially two types of 
revenues. In one, monies must be expended on the specific purpose or project before any amounts will be 
paid to the Municipality; therefore, revenues are recognized based upon the expenditures incurred. In the 
other, monies are virtually unrestricted and are usually revocable only for failure to comply with 
prescribed compliance requirements. These resources are reflected as revenues at the time of receipt or 
earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria are met. 
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The Municipality reports deferred revenue on its combined balance sheet. Deferred revenue arises when 
potential revenue does not meet both the measurable and available criteria for recognition in the current 
period. Deferred revenue also arises when the Municipality receives resources before it has a legal claim 
to them, as when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. 

In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the Municipality has a 
legal claim to the resources, the liability for deferred revenues is removed from the combined balance 
sheet and revenue is recognized. 

Licenses, permits, service charges, fines and forfeits and miscellaneous revenues are recorded as revenues 
on the cash basis, which includes amounts collected shortly after June 30. Investment income is recorded 
as revenue when received. The enterprise fund follows the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual 
basis, revenue is recognized when earned and expenses are recorded as liabilities when incurred, without 
regard to receipt or payment of cash. Expenditures and related liabilities are generally recorded, except as 
described below, in the accounting period in which the liability is incurred. Expenditures and related 
liabilities for interest on long-tenn obligations, are recorded when due, except for interest due July I st of 
the following year which is accounted for as paid on June 30. Vacation, sick leave, disallowances and 
litigation are recorded in the statement of net assets. 

Budgetary Accounting 

The Municipality's annual budget is prepared on the budgetary basis of accounting and represents 
departmental appropriations recommended by the Mayor and approved by the Municipality's City 
Council prior to the beginning of the fiscal year. Budgetary control is maintained at the department level 
for each individual appropriation. Amendments to the budget, and budgetary transfers related to personal 
expenditures, require the approval of the City Council. Non-capital encumbrances lapse at the end of the 
next fiscal year. Since the budgetary basis differs from accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America (GAAP), actual amounts for the general fund in the accompanying Statement of 
Revenues and Expenditures - Budget and Actual - General Fund is presented on the budgetary basis to 
enhance comparability. The principal differences between the budgetary and GAAP bases are the 
following: 

L Encumbrances are considered as expenditures for budgetary purposes. 

2. Prior year encumbrances settled during the year and recorded as expenditures for GAAP basis. 

3. Effect of GAAP basis accruals. 

This Space Is Intentionally Left In Blank 
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The following is reconciliation, of the differences between GAAP and the budgetary basis for the general 
fund excess of expenditures and other financing uses over revenues and other financing sources: 

Change in fund balance as per Statements of Revenues, Expenditures and 

Change in Fwid Balance (GAAP Basis) 

Special Fund's Expenditures within General Fund 

Prior year's encwnbrances settled during the current fiscal year 

Current fiscal year encumbrances treated as current year expenditures for 

budgetary purposes 

Non-budgeted revenues: Loan 

Excess of resources over appropriations - Non GAAP Budgetary Basis 

Cash and Investments 

$ 6,046,792 

5,315,491 

3,375,442 

(3,981,494) 

(5,510,500) 

$ 5,245,731 

Substantially all cash balances are commingled in a deposit and checking accounts, certificates of 
deposits and several special purpose bank accounts, except for cash and investments restricted by law. 
Each fund records its equity interest in the pooled cash balance. The available cash balance in the general 
checking account beyond immediate needs is invested in interest bearing deposits. Investment earnings 
are all credited to the general fund. The Municipality has also implemented the provision of GASB No. 
40, Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures, an amendment of GASB No. 3. This statement establishes 
and modifies disclosure requirements related to investment risks; credit risk, foreign currency risk, and 
deposits risk, as applicable. 

Investments are carried at fair market value. Investments are composed of highly liquid U.S. Treasury 
Securities which are covered by the provisions of GASB Statement No. 31 "Accounting and Financial 
reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools" therefore, the Municipality accounts 
for changes in the market value of its investments at the closing of the period. 

Cash with fiscal agent includes property tax collections retained by the Municipal Revenue Collection 
Center (CRIM, as per its Spanish acronyms) which are restricted for the payment of the Municipality's 
general obligations through the debt service fund. It a]so includes loans disbursements which were 
received by the Municipality after the end of fiscal year. 

Inter-Fund Transactions 

The Municipality has the following types of transactions among funds: 

Operating Transfers - Transfers that are reported when incurred as "Operating transfers in" by the 
recipient fund and as "Operating transfers out" by the disbursing fund. 
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Receivables and Payable - Transactions between funds outstanding at the end of the fiscal year 
are referred as due to/from other funds. The general fund provides services, at cost, to other 
funds. The amounts charged to other funds are treated as reductions in expenditures of the general 
fund. 

Eliminations are made in the government wide statements of the amounts reported as inter-fund 
receivables as well as operating transfers, except for the net residual amounts due between governmental 
and business-type activities, which are reported as internal balances. 

Capital Assets 

Capital assets acquired or constructed, whether owned by governmental activ1tJes or business-type 
activities are recorded and depreciated in the government-wide financial statements. No long-tenn capital 
assets or depreciation are sho\lm in the governmental funds financial statements. 

Capital assets, include public domain infrastructure (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks and other assets that 
are immovable and of value only to the Municipality). Capital assets are recorded at cost or estimated 
historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at the estimated fair market 
value at the date of donation. 

The cost of nonnal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the capital asset or extend 
capital assets lives are not capitalized. Major improvements are capitaliz.ed and depreciated over the 
remaining useful lives of the related capital assets. Finally, major outlays for capital assets and 
improvements are capitalized as the projects are constructed. 

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Installations and recreational parks 
Building and building improvements 
Infrastructure 
Personal property, plaques and monuments 
Software 

Accrued Compensated Absences 

120 to 600 months 
60 to 600 months 
nil to 600 months 
36 to 180 months 

12 to 72 months 

Employees accrue vacation leave at a rate of 2.5 days per month up to a maximum of 60 days. Unpaid 
vacation time accumulated is fully vested to the employees from the first day of work. Employees 
accumulate sick leave at a rate of 1.5 days per month up to a maximum of 90 days. Upon retirement, an 
employee receives compensation for all accumulated unpaid sick leave at their then current rate of pay, if 
the employee has at least 10 years of service with the Municipality. Total vested pay benefits accrued for 
compensated absences at June 30, 2009 amounts to $11,306,880. 

Long-term Debt 

The liabilities reported in the government-wide statements include the Municipality's general obligation 
bonds and notes for the realization of capital projects, and other long-term liabilities including vacation, 
sick leave, and litigation. 
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Reserves of Fund Balance 

Reserves of fund balance represent portions of fund balances that are legally segregated for a specific 
future use or are not appropriable for expenditure. The Municipality has the following reservations of 
fund balance: 

Encumbrances - represent future expenditures under purchase orders, contracts and other 
commitments. These committed amounts generally will become liabilities in future periods as the 
goods or services are received. 

Debt Service - Represents fund balance available to finance future debt service payments. 

Capital Projects - Represent fund balance available to finance future capital outlays and other 
public works projects. Also includes fund balances available to finance projects approved by the 
Legislature of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico for housing, culture and recreation, public 
works, economic development and other activities requested by the Municipality's citizenship. 

Head Start Food and Children Programs - Represents fund balances available to finance activities 
of education and care of the eligible elderly population, mainly through the Head Start, Child 
Care and Child Care Food federal programs. 

Housing Projects - Represents fund balances available to finance activities oriented to the 
housing rent, acquisition, construction and rehabilitation for the Municipality's eligible 
citizenship. 

Special Projects - Represent fund balances available to finance activities which serve different 
purposes as stated through donor's imposed restrictions. 

Claims and Judgments 

The estimated amount of the liability for claims and judgments, which is due on demand, such as from 
adjudicated or settled claims, is recorded in the general fund. The government wide financial statements 
include an amount estimated as a contingent liability or liabilities with a fixed or expected due date, 
which will require future available financial resources for its payment. 

Subsequent Events 

In preparing the financial statements, the Municipality's management consider events and transactions 
subsequent to June 30, 2009, that are determined to be significant and material that should be considered 
for financial statement purposes. Within this process, management consults with its legal counsel and 
perform monitoring procedures over significant receipts and disbursements and over the Municipal 
Legislature ordinances and resolutions, among other procedures. 
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2. ANNUAL REVENUES 

Property Taxes 

The CRIM is responsible for the assessment of all real and personal property located within the 
Municipality of Caguas and for the levy, administration and collection of the corresponding taxes. 
The property tax is levied each year on the assessed value of the property at the beginning of the 
calendar year. Assessed values of real property are established at the estimated current value existing 
in the year 1957 and of personal property at the current value at the date of assessment. 

Complete real property tax exoneration is granted by the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico on the first 
$15,000 of the assessed valuation of owner occupied residential units. However, the Municipality 
receives the full amount levied, except for residential units assessed at less than $3,500 on which a 
complete exemption is granted. Complete exemption from personal property taxes up to an 
assessment of $50,000 is granted to retailers with an annual volume of net sales under $150,000. The 
Department of the Treasury, instead of the property taxpayer, becomes the source of payment in these 
cases. 

The annual effective tax rate for fiscal year 2009 is 9.53% for real property and 7.53% for personal 
property of which 1.03% of each belongs to the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. The remaining 
percentage is distributed as follows: 

(a) 6.00% and 4.00% respectively, represent the Municipality's basic property tax rate which is 
appropriated for general purposes and accounted for in the general fund. The basic property tax rate 
is segregated by CRIM and accounted for an equalization fund together with a percentage of the net 
revenues of the Puerto Rico electronic lottery and a subsidy from the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. 
The equalization fund assures that every municipality receive at least an amount equal to the tax 
collected to its base year or prior year. 

(b) 2.5% represents the ad valorem tax restricted for debt service and accounted for in the debt 
service fund. 

The Commonwealth makes a contribution equivalent to .20% portion of the tax rates to compensate 
the municipality for a discount granted to the taxpayers . Accordingly the taxpayer's imposed tax rate 
for real and personal property is 9.33% and 7.33%, respectively. 

Since the collection of property taxes from the taxpayers is under the administration of the CRIM, the 
CRIM shall report to the Municipality the estimated and actual revenues related to property taxes, as 
well as the cost of its operational expenses allocated to the Municipality. During the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2009 the allocated expenses amounted to $1,501,003 (before final liquidation). 

Section 5803(b) of Law No. 80 of the CRIM, allows the municipalities to develop and carry on 
activities and programs to expedite the assessments of new constructions and existing properties not 
yet assessed. Accordingly, in conjunction with a covenant with the CRIM, the Municipality of 
Caguas engaged into an initiative, in order to increase the basis of properties over which the tax rate is 
applied and also to collect the resulting taxes receivable in arrears at the CRIM (there is no receivable 
recorded within the Municipality's general ledger). The Municipality contracted an external 
consulting firm to assist and expedite these services. Among the different types of services offered, 
the consulting firm has engaged into the process of assisting the CRIM to assess the new construction 
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and other existing properties. These assessments will become then part of the CRIM tax roll register. 
This is the subsidiary of all properties assessed for tax purposes. 

The consulting finn submits the new assessed properties for review and validation by the CRIM 
which proceeds to assign the assessed valuation and the tax to be imposed. Then, the CRIM 
determine those new properties that would to be added in the tax roll, either because they are from 
new construction or because are previous existing properties, with bettennents identified but not 
reported previously. This process is perfonned either through physical inspections, knowledge of 
existent activities within the Municipality or by comparing the sales volume taxes returns (in case of 
commercial properties) with the property taxes returns, among other strategies. The updated 
information is delivered to the CRIM in order to be included within the tax roll for subsequent taxes 
levies. 

Also the consulting finn provides services to the Municipality by providing services to the tax payer 
and by providing aggressive follow up on the CRIM taxes receivables in arrears. The purpose of these 
combined efforts is increasing the tax revenue for the Municipality. 

Municipal License Taxes 

The Municipality imposes a volume of business tax pursuant to Act No. 82 of August 30, 1991, on all 
business entities, which operate within the Municipality, which are not exempt from the tax pursuant 
to the Industrial Incentives Act. The tax is based on gross revenues, as defined by law, computed at 
the rate of 1.50% for financial institutions and savings and loans associations, and .50% for all other 
business entities. 

The minimum gross revenue to file the Volume of Business Tax Declaration is $5,000 and the 
minimum tax payable is $25. The date to file the Volume of Business Tax Declaration is April 15 
each year. The Municipality grants a five percent discount, ifthe tax.es are paid on or before April 15. 
Otherwise, 50% of taxes payable must be paid within the first 15 days of each semester beginning 
with the first semester ending December 31. 

Collections of volume of business tax revenues received mainly in April 15, are accounted as deferred 
revenues, since such collections have a time requirement and should be used starting July lst of next 
fiscal year. In the next fiscal year, the deferred volume of business tax revenues are recognized as 
revenue, net of any credit or refunds payable to taxpayers. 

Sales Taxes 

On July 4, 2006, Law No. l l 7 known as "Tax Justice Law of 2006" (hereinafter the Act) 
incorporated a set of amendments to Law No. 120 of October 31, 1994 - "Internal Revenue Code of 
Puerto Rico of 1994". One of the objectives of this Act was to impose a general sale and use tax of 
5.5% at the Commonwealth level. Of this 5.5%, the Act authorized the Municipalities to impose sales 
and use tax of 1.5% at the Municipal level following the same regulations imposed in the Act. It was 
a mandate that the 1.5% was approved and established by Ordinance approved by the Municipal 
Legislature. 

41 



Autonomous Municipality of Caguas 
Notes to Financial Statement 
For the Year Ended June 30, 2009 

On July 12, 2006, the Municipality approved Ordinance No. 6A-6, Series 2006-2007 imposing the 
1.5% sales and use tax as authorized in the Act, effective September 1, 2006. Consequently, 
Ordinance No. 05A-46, as amended, was rescinded effective August 31, 2006. The Internal Revenue 
Code of Puerto Rico of 1994 was again amended with Law No. 80 of July 29, 2007, specifically 
addressing Law No. 117. Law No. 80 made it a requirement for Municipalities to impose a 1.5% 
municipal tax unifonnly across the Commonwealth. Municipalities would collect 1 % as previously 
established in Sections 2410 and 6189 of the Act and the remaining .5% would be collected by the 
Department of Treasury of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. In order to comply with the new State 
Tax Code, on August 3, 2007 the Municipality approved Ordinance 078-4 (effective August 1, 2007), 
which abolished Ordinance No. 6A-6, Series 2006-2007 and took the Municipality out the role of 
imposing regulations over the sales and use tax. From this point on all amendments, new laws, rules, 
and regulations are responsibilities of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico as stated by the law. 

As the last amendment, the current Law No. 80 dictates that the .5% collected by the Department of 
Treasury will be deposited and administered by the Puerto Rico Government Development Bank and 
will be used for the following purposes: 

I. Municipal Redemption Fund - composed of .2% of the .5%. To be used to grant loans for the 
exclusive benefit of the municipalities. This fund, in addition to other variables, is used to 
calculate the Municipality's borrowing power within a specific timeframe. The Municipality's 
borrowing margin for the audited year was approximately $29,000,000 with a contribution to the 
fund (in the audited year) of $2,660,009. 

2. Municipal Development Fund - composed of .2% of the .5%. To be used to establish a 
Municipal Development Fund to be distributed among all municipalities according to the formula 
established as part of the Law. 

3. Municipal Improvements Fund - 1 % of the .5%. To be distributed according to Legislation 
passed by the Legislative Assembly for capital improvement projects in the municipalities. 

3. CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, Ai.~ INVESTMENTS 

Puerto Rico laws authorize governmental entities to invest in direct obligations or obligations 
guaranteed by the federal government or the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. The Municipality is also 
allowed to invest in bank acceptances, other bank obligations and certificates of deposit in financial 
institutions authorized to do business under the federal and Commonwealth laws. During the year, the 
Municipality invested its funds in interest bearing bank accounts, and certificates of deposit. The 
Municipality is subject to the following credit risks: 

Custodian Credit Risk 

The Municipality is authorized to deposit only in institutions approved by the Department of the 
Treasury of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. Such deposits should be kept in separate accounts in 
the name of the Municipality. Under Puerto Rico statutes, public funds deposited in commercial 
banks must be fully collateralized for the amount deposited in excess of federal depository insurance. 
During the year ended June 30, 2009, the Municipality invested its funds in bank accounts bearing 
interest. 
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At June 30, 2009 the Municipality had bank balances as follows: 

Insured by the Federal Deposits Insurance Corporation 

Collateralized by securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust 

department in the Municipality's name 

Total 

$ 1,750,000 

14,976,934 

$ 16,726,934 

In addition, as of June 30 2009, the Municipality's custodial credit risk was approximately $75.4 
million, which is the bank balance of cash deposited at the Government Development Bank for Puerto 
Rico. These deposits are exempt from the collateral requirement established by the Commonwealth. 

Interest rate risk 

At June 30, 2009, the Municipality maintains investments in debt securities with a fair market value 
of approximately $5. 7 million, which are secured by the Federal Government. Market values of such 
investments are very sensitive to the changes in the interest rates. At June 30, 2009, the Municipality 
had a risk of not recovering the market value of such investments if such investments are sold. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

No investment in debt security in any organization represents 5% or more of the Municipality's net 
assets. 

4. INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES 

Sources of intergovernmental revenues are primarily of governmental payments from the 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and "in lieu of tax" payments from certain quasi public corporations, 
such as Puerto Rico Electric Power Authority (PREP A). The amount of contribution in lieu of tax for 
the year 2008-2009 was $8,102,680. 

Grants and subsidies received from the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico include, among others, 
subsidies through legislative appropriations mainly for capital improvements. 

This Space Is Intentionally Left In Blank 
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5. INTER-FUND LOANS 

Due from/to other funds 

Inter-fund receivables and payables generally reflect temporary loans, billings for services provided 
and recovery of expenditures. Following is a summary of inter-fund assets and liabilities as of June 
30, 2009: 

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount 
Multitenant Fund $ 163,464 
Community Development Bank 496,142 
Head Start, Food and Children Program 80,970 
Housing and Rental Program 1,278,644 
Other Governmental Fund 1,975,943 
Capital Project 7,230,513 

General 11,225,676 

General 22,335 
Legislative 927,665 

Legislative 950,000 

General 94,393 
Public Residential Administration 94,393 

General 1,750 
Other Governmental Fund $ 1,750 

The purpose of each inter-fund balances are the following: 

Payables to the general funds: 

Housing and Rental - includes expenditures mainly of the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher, 
HOME Investment Partnership Program and other housing projects sponsored by the 
Municipality, which are initially disbursed through the general fund. 

Head Start Food and Children Program - includes expenditures mainly of the Head Start, Child 
Care and USDA Food and Children programs and other related projects sponsored by the 
Municipality, which are initially disbursed through the general fund. 

Capital Project Fund - includes expenditures mainly of the Community Development Block 
grants and Community Facilities Loans Programs and other related projects sponsored by the 
Municipality, which are initially disbursed through the general fund. 

Community Development Bank (COB) - includes professional fees, rent and other operating 
expenses of the CDB, but disbursed initially through the general fund. 
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Multitenant Funds - includes expenditures to finance mainly the construction of various projects 
whose use will be oriented to technology development, in the "Multifabril Buildings'', which 
were disbursed initially through the general fund. 

Other Governmental Funds and Legislative Funds - includes expenditures mainly to finance 
certain public safety and health and welfare projects that involve both the use of federal and 
municipal funds and which were initially disbursed through the general fund. 

Transfers in/out 

Inter-fund transfers in/out reflect the transfers of resources between from one fund to another without 
the attempt of recovering. Following is a summary of inter-fund transfers for the year ended June 30, 
2009: 

Transferred in Transferred out Amount 
Muhitenant $ 3,479,371 
Debt Service 11540!131 

Capital Project $ 5,019,502 

Legislative $ 151,000 
Housing and Rentals 10,435 
Capital Project 946,156 
Head Start Food and Children 476,441 
Debt Service 6,219,942 
Other Governmental 1!165!864 

General $ 8,969,838 

Muhitenant $ 35,000 
Other Governmental 40,200 
General 102000 

Other Governmental $ 85,200 

Other Governmental $ 150!000 
Multitenant $ 150,000 

Muhitenant $ 6172713 
Legislative $ 617,713 

The purpose of each inter-fund balances are the following: 

Transfers-out from the General Fund - current financial resources transferred for the performing 
of capital projects, housing, operational loans debt service payments, public safety, public works 
and health and welfare projects and CDB's debt service and administrative expenses. 
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Transfer-outs from Capital Project Fund - current financial resources transferred to the debt 
service fund for the debt service payment of federal loans and notes and to the general fund for 
public work projects. 
Transfers-out from the Other Governmental Funds - current financial resources transferred to the 
general fund for operational purposes. 

Transfers-out from the Multitenant Fund - current financial resources transferred to the other 
governmental funds for the realization technological projects. 

6. CAP IT AL ASSETS 

A summary of the activity of capital assets for governmental activities group follows: 

Balaoce Balanee 
June 30, 2008 Additions Rttirtmeats Transfers June 30, 2009 

Capital assets not being depreciated 
Land and improvements s 46,495,788 81,358 46,5n,146 
Construction in progress 87,330,153 25,020,390 (79,308,614) 33,041,929 
Wooo of art and historical treasures 3,402,461 261200 3!428,661 

Total not being depreciated 137 ,228, 402 25!127,948 ~79,308,614) 831047,736 

Other capil!I ~ 
Facilities and improvemeJlts 22,629,815 13,256,957 35,886,m 
Buildings and improvements 158,752,366 35,642,5-06 194,394,872 
Computer software 1,1 12,084 1,112,084 
Infrastructure 402,927,271 30,409,151 433,336,422 
Equipment and vehicles 3717461885 ~105,767 (367,998) 391484,654 

Total other capital assets 623,168,421 2,1051767 (367,998) 79,308,614 704!214,804 

Balance Depreciation Balance 
JUDC 30, 2008 Es:penses Retirtmta ts Transfers June 30, 2009 

Accumulated dep-eciation 
Facilities and improvelDCllts 9,039,769 1,114,739 10,154,508 
Building and improvements 77,155,173 3,879,570 81,034,743 
Equipment and vehicles 21,634,435 2,819,770 (323,409) 24,130,796 
Computer software 317,667 317,667 
Infrastructure 118,270,955 141270,028 132,5401983 

226,417,999 22,0841107 (323,409) 248, 178,697 

Capital ~ net s 533,978,824 S,149,608 (44,589) 539,083,843 

During current year, the Municipality changed its policy to transfer construction in progress properly 
concluded to other classification of capital assets. Originally, the Municipality used a certification 
from Public Works, however for current year and prospectively, the Municipality will also determine 
the conclusion of a capital project if it is being used. 
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A summary of the activity of capital assets for business-type activities group follows: 

Balance Balance 
June 30, 2008 Additions Retirements Transfers June 30, 2009 

Capital assets not being depreciated 
Land and improvements $ 3,937,254 3,937,254 
Construction in progress 614931694 412101726 (1017041420} 

Total not being depreciated 101430,948 41210,726 (10,7041420} 3,9371254 

Other capital assets 
Buildin~ and improvements 3,017,270 10,704,420 13,721,690 
Equipment 351748 35,748 

Total other capital assets 3,053,018 10)04,420 131757,438 

Accumulated depreciation 
Building and improvements 443,482 60,845 504,327 
Equipment 34 551 429 341980 

478z033 61 ,274 5391307 

Capital assets, net $ 131005,933 411491452 1711551385 

Depreciation expense for capital assets of governmental activities was charged to the following 
functions as follows: 

Public works 

Economic development 

General government 

Health and welfare 

Public safety 

Culture and recreation 

Sanitation and environmental 

Education 

Housing 

7. GENERAL LONG - TERM DEBT 

$ 8,462,846 

5,266,954 

4,062,958 

3,719,607 

283,232 

147,117 

137,238 

3,801 

354 
$ 22,084, 107 

The legal debt margin of the Municipality is equal to l 0% of the total assessment of property located 
within the Municipality. At June 30, 2008, total property assessments, based on information reported 
by the Municipal Revenue Collection Center amounted to $1 ,260,376,436 of which $659,566,108 and 
$600,810,328 are real and personal property, respectively. 

Law number 7 of March 9, 2009, as amended, known as Law for Declaration of a State of Fiscal 
Emergency. amended Property Tax Law number 83 of August 30, 2001. Such law established that 
the assessed valuation to the real property as of January l, 2009; January 1, 201 O; January l, 2011 and 
January 1, 2012 will be determined in accordance with the regulations establish under Law 83 as of 
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January 1, 2009, multiplied by ten (I 0) times. The amendment applies to those fiscal years beginning 
after June 30, 2009. 

However, as of the date the financial statements were issued the Municipality has not received any 
communication by the Municipality Revenue Collection Center with respect to the total property 
assessments. All of the Municipality's long-term debt has been issued for the construction of capital 
projects in benefit of the citizenship. 

Changes in general long - term debt of governmental activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, 
which the beginning balances were restated because of the inclusion of payment of July 1, 2008, 
which are considered payments for the current fiscal year, are summarized as follows: 

Federal Loans Operational 
Bonds and Notes Loans Totals 

Balance at June 30, 2008, as previously reported $ 115,103,680 8,229,000 66,032,758 189,365,438 
Restatement 51929,000 (6241000) 2,024,000 7,329,000 
Balance at June 30, 2008, as restated 121 ,032,680 7,605,000 68,056,758 196,694,438 
Payments (5,852,000) (1,050,000) (2,590, 758) (9,492, 758) 
New debt issued 3015921500 30,592,500 
Balance at June 30, 2009 $ 115,180,680 6,5551000 961058,500 217,794,180 

As of June 30, 2009, debt service requirements for the above long-term debt are as follows: 

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total 

2010 $ 14,626,503 11,162, 110 25,788,613 
2011 10,950,000 12,173,737 23, 123,737 
2012 11,348,000 11,480,870 22,828,870 
2013 11,703,000 10,503,725 22,206,725 
2014 12,451,000 10,030,922 22,481,922 

2015-2019 52,119,027 39,728,583 91,847,610 
2020-2024 51,176,000 25,434,981 76,610,981 
2025-2029 37,030,000 10,439,652 47,469,652 
2030-2034 14,895,650 3,948,757 18,844,407 
2035-2039 1,495,000 56,063 1,551,063 

$ 2171794,180 1341959,400 352, 753,580 
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General obligation bonds payable as of June 30, 2009 are as follows: 

Bonds: 

Description 

$85,000 payable in annual installments from $2,000 to $7,000 with 
interest rate at 5% until year 2014, secured by the Municipality. 

$125,000 payable in annual installments of $5,000 with interest rate 
fluctuating from 2.7% to 5.60% until year 2026, secured by the 
Municipality. 

$283,000 payable in annual installments from $6,000 to $20,000 with 
interest rate at 5% until year 2011, secured by the Municipality. 

$340,000 payable in annual installments from $5,000 to $20,000 w:ith 
interest rate fluctuating from 2.53% to 5.31% until year 2029, secured by 
the Municipality. 

$460,000 payable in annual installments from $10,000 to $35,000 w:ith 
interest rate fluctuating from 2.53% to 5.31 % until year 2029, secured by 
the Municipality. 

$500,000 payable in annual installments from $11,000 to $33,000 w:ith 
interest rate at 4.75% until year 2030, secured by the Municipality. 

$580,000 payable in annual installments from $13,000 to $41 ,000 with 
interest rate at 5% until year 2015, secured by the Municipality. 

$1,118,000 payable in annual installments from $34,000 to $86,003 with 
interest rate at 5% until year 2010, secured by the Municipality. 

$1,360,000 payable in annual installments from $20,000 to $115,000 
with interest rate fluctuating from 2.7% to 5.6% until year 2026, secured 
by the Municipality. 

$1,575,000 payable in annual installments from $30,000 to $115,000 
with interest rate fluctuating from 2.36% to 5.31 % until year 2028, 
secured by the Municipality. 

$1 ,610,000 payable in annual installments from $50,000 to $130,000 
with interest rate fluctuating from 4.17% to 5.28% until year 2024, 
secured by the Municipality. 

$1,640,000 payable in annual installments from $37,000 to $107,000 
with interest rate at 4.5% until year 2030, secured by the Municipality. 
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39,000 

340,000 

420,000 

454,000 

218,000 

86,003 

1,165,000 

1,415,000 
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Description 

$2,200,000 payable in annual installments from $62,000 to 
$177,000 with interest rate at 5.62% until year 2018, secured 
by the Municipality. 

$2,695,000 payable in annual installments from $58,000 to 
$178,650 with interest rate at 4.75% until year 2031, secured 
by the Municipality. 

$3,150,000 payable in annual installments from $40,000 to 
$275,000 with interest rate fluctuating from 2.7% to 7.81 % 
until year 2024, secured by the Municipality. 

$6,802,000 payable in annual installments from $102,000 to 
$567,000 with interest rate fluctuating from 2.43% to 7.5% 
until year 2032, secured by the Municipality. 

$7,575,000 payable in annual installments from $215,000 to 
$605,000 with interest rate fluctuating from 1.36% to 5.54% 
until year 2026, secured by the Municipality. 

$8,060,000 payable in annual installments from $170,000 to 
$545,000 with interest rate fluctuating from 1.93% to 6% 
until year 203 l , secured by the Municipality. 

$9,845,000 payable in annual installments from $145,000 to 
$820,000 with interest rate fluctuating from 2.7% to 5.6% 
until year 2026, secured by the Municipality. 

$9,900,000 payable in annual installments from $205,000 to 
$670,000 with interest rate fluctuating from 1.61 % to 5.02% 
until year 2028, secured by the Municipality. 

$9,910,000 payable in annual installments from $400,000 to 
$905,000 with interest rate fluctuating from 2.43% to 6.62% 
until year 2028, secured by the Municipality. 

$10,350,000 payable in annual installments from $305,000 to 
$755,000 with interest rate fluctuating from 2.7% to 7.81 % 
until year 2026, secured by the Municipality. 

$11,015,000 payable in annual installments from $3 15,000 to 
$875,000 with interest rate fluctuating from .52% to 5% until 
year 2025, secured by the Municipality. 

$11,020,000 payable in annual installments from $315,000 to 
$875,000 with interest rate fluctuating from .32% to 5% until 
year 2025, secured by the Municipality. 
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2,610,000 
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Description 

$15,955,000 payable in annual installments from $345,000 to 
$1,505,000 with interest rate fluctuating from 4. 70% to 8% 
until year 2015, secured by the Municipality. 

$776,000 payable in annual installments from $25,000 to 
$57,027 with interest rate at 4.5% until year 2019, secured by 
the Municipality. 

$624,000 payable in annual installments from $18,000 to 
$42,000 with interest rate at 4.5% until year 2030, secured by 
the Municipality. 

$1,870,000 payable in annual installments from $59,000 to 
$157,000 with interest rate at 6.13% until year 2030, secured 
by the Municipality. 

$13,300,000 payable in annual installments from $41 ,000 to 
$1,356,000 with interest rate fluctuating from 4.87 to 6.34% 
until year 2016, secured by the Municipality. 

$18,890,000 payable in semi-annual installments from 
$415,000 to $1,785,000 with interest rate fluctuating from 5% 
to 7.71 % until year 2013, secured by the Municipality. 

Total bonds 

This Space Is Intentionally Left In Blank 
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Balance 

$ 8,465,000 

472,027 

606,000 

287,000 

8,155,000 

7,690,000 

$ 115,180,680 
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Federal loans and notes: 

Sec. 108 loans: 
Description 

$8 million payable in annual installments fluctuating from $200,000 to 
$600,000 at 7.50% interest reate until year 2019, secured by building and 
adjacent parking facility owned by the Municipality and appraised at an 
aggregatd fair market value of approximately $1 l .8 million. 

$2,545,000 payable in annual installments fluctuating from $350,000 to 
$500,000 at 1.21%to4.44% interest rate until year 2009, secured by public 
facilities of the Municipality. 

$1.4 million payable in annual installments fluctuating from $125,000 to 
$270,000 at 6.57% interest rate until year 2011, secured by public facilities 
of the Municipality. 

Total federal loans and notes 

This Space ls Intentionally Left In Blank 
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Balance 

$ 5,400,000 

500,000 

655,000 

$ 6,555,000 
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Operational Loans: 
Description: 

$2,065,000 payable in annual installments from $35,000 to $165,000 with 
interest rate fluctuating from 3.66% to 6.49% until year 2027, secured by the 
Municipality. 

$2,350,000 payable in annual installments from $270,000 to $400,000 with 

interest rate at 5.5% until year 2009, secured by the Municipality. 

$5,185,000 payable in annual installments from $90,000 to $400,000 with 
interest rate fluctuating from 3.66% to 6.41 % until year 2027, secured by the 

Municipality. 

$640,000 payable in annual installments from $80,000 to $105,000 with 
interest rate fluctuating from 2.43% to 7.5% until year 2011, secured by the 

Municipality. 

$15,385,000 payable in annual installments from $260,000 to $1,185,000 with 

interest rate fluctuating from 3.65% to 6.40% until year 2027, secured by the 

Municipality. 

$1,385,000 payable in annual installments from $245,000 to $305,000 with 
interest rate fluctuating from 3 .59% to 4.50% until year 20 l 0, secured by the 
Municipality. 

$10,015,000 payable in annual installments from $300,000 to $765,000 with 
interest rate fluctuating from 5% to 5.58% until year 2025, secured by the 
Municipality. 

$8,575,000 payable in annual installments from $275,000 to $705,000 with 
interest rate fluctuating from 6.48% to 7% until year 2024, secured by the 

Municipality. 

$10,075,000 payable in annual installments from $255,000 to $855,000 with 
interest rate fluctuating from 5.48% to 6.07% until year 2026, secured by the 

Municipality. 
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Balance 

$ l ,770,000 

400,000 

4,430,000 

300,000 

13, 160,000 

595,000 

9,060,000 

8,010,000 

9,540,000 
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Opeartional Loans: 
Description 

$3,185,000 payable in annual installments from $60,000 to $215,000 with 

interest rate at 5% until year 2032, secured by the Municipality. 

$500,000 payable in annual installments from $19,000 to $52,000 with 
interest rate fluctuating from 6.48% to 7.50% until year 2022, secured by 
the Municipality. 

$7,750,000 payable in annual installments from $290,000 to $676,000 with 
interest rate fluctuating from 4.15% to 5.72% until year 2024 secured by the 
Municipality 

$7,135,000 payable in annual installments from $805,000 to $1,255,000 

with interest rate at 7.5% until year 2015, secured by the Municipality. 

$542,000 payable in annual installments from $8,000 to $47,000 with 
interest rate fluctuating from 2.43% to 7.5% until year 2033, secured by the 
Municipality. 

$8,770,000 payable in annual installments from $140,000 to $735,000 with 
interest rate fluctuating from 2.43% to 7.5% until year 2033, secured by the 
Municipality. 

$9,740,000 payable in annual installments from $145,000 to $815,000 with 
interest rate at 7.5% until year 2034, secured by the Municipality. 

$8,030,000 payable in annual installments from $130,000 to $680,000 with 
interest rate at 7.5% until year 2034, secured by the Municipality. 

$3,510,000 payable due in 2009 with interest rate at 7.5%, secured by the 

Municipality. 

Total operational loans 
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Balance 

$ 3,125,000 

481,000 

7,460,000 

7,135,000 

542,000 

8,770,000 

9,740,000 

8,030,000 

3,510,500 

$ 96,058,500 
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Long-tenn debt for business-type activities at June 30, 2009 is summarized as follows: 

Description 

Special bond obligation for $500,000 to provide financing for the construction 
and rehabilitation of housing project for citizens of low and moderate income; 
annual interest rate at 2% with maturity of January 1, 2010, secured by the 
Municipality. 

Special bond obligation for $300,000 to provide for financing the reconstruction 
and rehabilitation of housing project for citizens of low and moderate income; 
annual interest rate at 2% with maturity on July 30, 2012, secured by the 
Municipality. 

Total operational loans 

Balance 

$ 114,750 

109,415 

$ 224,165 

The debt service requirement for the long-tenn debt of Enterprise funds is scheduled as follows: 

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total 

2010 $ 149,325 3,606 152,931 
2011 35,269 1,320 36,589 
2012 35,978 611 36,589 
2013 3,593 36 3,629 

$ 224,165 5,573 229,738 

The Municipality owes a long tenn debt balance with Municipal Revenue Collection Center as 
summarized below: 

Description 

Land lnfonnation Management System (LIMS), original issued in the 

amount of $3,220,461 at 20 years with a semi-annual interest rate of 
2.9750%. 

Law No. 42 repayment plan, issued for $1 ,875,566 at 30 years with a 

semi-annual rate of3.0938%. 
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Balance 

$ 989,765 

1, 701,015 

$ 2,690,780 
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The debt service requirement for the long-tenn debt with the Municipal Revenue Collection Center is 
scheduled as follows: 

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total 

2010 $ 412,123 158,082 570,205 

2011 437,091 133,113 570,204 

2012 247,607 106,632 354,239 

2013 40,261 98,013 138,274 

2014 42,790 95,484 138,274 

2015-2019 257,823 433,546 691,369 

2020-2024 349,657 341,710 691,367 

2025-2029 474,204 217, 162 691,366 

2030-2034 429,224 54,733 483,957 

$ 2,690,780 1,638,475 4,329,255 

Due to the Employee's Retirement System of the Government of the Commonwealth of Puerto 
Rico 

As a result of an audit performed in the Employee's Retirement System of the Government of the 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the System), it was determined that the System had not billed to the 
Municipality the costs of benefits due to inflation and pension increases during the fiscal periods 
covering from 2002-2003 to 2007-2008. Amount due to the System for this concept amounted to 
$188,604. Through the Ordinance 07B-22, the Municipality ratified a payment plan agreement with 
the System for the amount above and it is schedule to mature on May 20 I 0. 

8. ACCRUED LIABILITIES 

At June 30, 2009, the Municipality had the following accrued liabilities: 

Balance Balance Due within 
June 30, 2008 Additions Deductions June 30, 2009 one year 

Accrued compensated absences $ 9,994,827 2,823,868 ( 1,511 ,815) 11,306,880 1,550,000 
Accrued legal claims 6,233,644 2,214,917 (6, 126,044) 2,322,517 

s 16,228,471 5,038,785 (7,637,859) 13,629,397 1,550,000 
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9. RETIREMENT PLANS 

Employee's Retirement System of the Government of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 

The Municipality participates in the Employee's Retirement System of the Government of the 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico (the System), a multiple-employer contributory retirement plan, which 
covers only eligible full-time employees. The system provides retirement, death, and disability 
benefits and annuities to Commonwealth employees not covered by their own systems. 

Commonwealth legislation required employees to contribute S.775% for the first $550 of their 
monthly gross salary and 8.275% for the excess over $550 of monthly gross salary. The Municipality 
is required by the same statute to contribute 9 .27 5 % of the participants' gross salary. Total employer 
contributions during the year ended June 30, 2009 amounted to approximately $2,696,000. 

On September 24, 1999, Law No. 305 an amendment to Act No. 447 of May 15, 1991, which created 
the System, was enacted with the purpose of establishing a defined contribution plan (System 2000). 
Employees participating in the current system as of December 31, 1999, may elect to stay in the 
defined benefit plan or transfer to the new program. Persons joining on or after January 1, 2000 will 
only be allowed to become members of the System 2000. System 2000 will reduce the retirement age 
from 65 to 60 for those employees who joined the current plan on or after April I, 1990. 

System 2000 is a hybrid defined contribution plan, also known as a cash balance plan. Under this new 
plan, there will be a pool of pension assets, which will be invested by the System together with those 
of the current defined benefit plan. The Commonwealth of Puerto Rico will not guarantee benefits at 
retirement age. The annuity will be based on a formula which assumes that each year the employee's 
contribution (with a minimum of 8.275% of the employees' salary up to a maximum of 10%) will be 
invested in account which either; ( 1) earn a fixed rate based on the two year Constant Maturity 
Treasury Note or, (2) earn a rate equal to 75% of the return of the System investment portfolio (net of 
management fees), or (3) earn a combination of both alternatives. Participants will receive periodic 
account statements similar to those of defined contribution plans showing their accrued balances. 
Disability pensions will not be granted under System 2000. The employer's contribution (9.275% of 
the employee's salary) will be used to fund the current plan. 

For the year ended June 30, 2009, total covered payroll was approximately $31 million. Covered 
payroll refers to all compensation paid by the Municipality to employees covered by the System on 
which contributions to the pension are based. 

The amount of the annuity shall be one and one-half percent of the average compensation multiplied 
by the number of years of creditable service up to twenty years, plus two percent of the average 
compensation multiplied by the number of years of creditable service in excess of twenty years, for 
those employees covered after March 31, 1990, the annuity shall be equal to one and one-half percent 
of the average compensation multiplied by the number of years of creditable service, in no case shall 
the annuity be less than $2,400. 
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Retirement Plan of Head Start Food and Children Program 

Effective January I, 2002, the Municipality created a retirement plan (the Plan) for all employees of 
those whose salaries were funded with the Head Start Food and Children Program federal financial 
award and which have at least one year of service and are age twenty-one or older. The Plan is part of 
the Popular Master Defined Contribution Retirement. The Plan is subject to the provisions of the 
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERlSA). 

The Municipality was required to contribute three percent (3%) of the employees' annual 
compensation. Participants may contribute based on after tax contributions amounts representing up 
to ten percent ( 10%) of the aggregate compensation paid to the employee, excluding the Christmas 
Bonus. 

Participants are immediately vested in their contributions plus actual earnings thereon. Vesting is 
based on years of continuous service. The participant vesting schedule on such portion of their 
accounts is described below: 

Completed years of service 

Less than 3 years 

At least 3 years 

At least 4 years 

At least 5 years 

At least 6 years 

At least 7 years 

Vested percent 

0% 

20% 
40% 
60% 
80% 
100% 

The vesting provisions consider years of service before the employer established this Plan. 

On termination of service due to death, disability or retirement, a participant or beneficiary may elect 
to receive a lump-sum amount equal to the value of the participants' vested interest in his/her account, 
or maintain the funds in the Plan. Also, ten years annuities are allowed under the plan. The normal 
retirement age is the latter of the date a participant attains his 65th birthday or the fifth anniversary of 
the first day of the plan year in which he/she commenced participation in the Plan. Early retirement 
distributions are not permitted. Under the provisions of the Plan, participants are not permitted to 
withdraw any amount contributed by the employer from the plan, unless separated from employment. 

During the year ended June 30, 2009, the Municipality contributions to this plan amounted to 
approximately $179 ,3 06. 

This Space ls Intentionally Left In Blank 
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10. COMMITMENTS 

Operating Leases 

The Municipality leases various properties and equipment under operating lease agreements, which 
generally have terms of one year or less and are automatically renewed if sufficient funds are 
available. Lease agreements covering periods in excess of one-year are cancelable at the 
Municipality's option upon 30 days written notice to the lessor. Rental expenditures for the year 
ended June 30, 2009 amounted to approximately $282,584. Future operating lease commitments are 
scheduled as follows: 

Year Amount 

2010 $ 184,962 
2011 132,375 
2012 90,315 
2013 32,362 

$ 440,014 

Solid Waste Disl!osal Contract 

In September 2001, the Municipality contracted E.C. Waste Inc. to provide the service of for the 
recollection, management and disposal of solid waste. This contract was amended in April 2003 to 
incorporate additional services related with those previously mentioned. In the contract it was 
established that the Municipality is committed to pay E.C. Waste Inc. $10.50 per unit served applied 
to a starting minimum of 45,500 units with annual increases of two and a half percent (2.5%) up to 
fiscal year to be ended at June 30, 2010. Expenditure for the year ended June 30, 2009 for this 
service amounts to $7. 7 million, approximately. 

In addition, the Municipality is committed to pay an additional $37.52 per tons that the Municipality 
transports and deposits in the E.C. Waste, Inc. 's center of recollection of such solid wastes for their 
processing. The price of the rate is also subject to an annual increase of two and a half (2.5%). 

All contract terms remained in effect up to December 31, 2009. After this date, the Municipality will 
enter into a renewed contract with the same vendor for a five-year term, commencing in January 1, 
20 l 0 and an approximate annual costs of $7.3 million. However, such contract has not been signed 
as of the date the financial statements were issued. 

Contributions Not for Profits Corporations 

Law #137 of August 9th, 2002, amended Article 17.001 and added Article 17.016 to the 1991 
Autonomous Municipalities Law No. 81 of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. This amendment 
authorizes Municipalities "to be part of, participate, support and sponsor non-profit organizations 
under the General Law of Corporations of 1995, as amended, and as long as it is organized to 
promote economic and cultural development or social improvement of a municipality or region of 
which the municipality is part of and the corporation counts with the participation and engagement 
of, in addition of the municipalities, the different sectors composed of higher level educational 
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institutions and industrial and commercial enterprises, including associations grouping businesses 
and industries ... Municipalities' participation on the Board of Directors cannot exceed 1/3 of the total 
members." 

Under this Article, the Municipality of Caguas, participates in various forms with (1) Corporaci6n de 
Bellas Artes de Caguas (COBAC); (2) Corporaci6n de Salud Aseguradora por Nuestra Organiz.aci6n 
Solidaria, Inc. (SANOS); (3) Corporaci6n de Conservaci6n Etnoecol6gica Criolla, Inc. (CCECI); (4) 
lniciativa Tecnol6gica Centro-Oriental, lnc.(INTECO); and (5) Banco de Desarrollo Centro 
Oriental, Inc. (BADECO). 

On October 8, 2004 representatives of the Municipality and COBAC signed a 15-year lease contract, 
transferring the operations of the Fine Arts Center (FAC) to COBAC effective July 1, 2004 for a 
$1,000 annual rental fee payable to the Municipality. In addition, the Municipality is scheduled to 
make annual contributions for 5 years at par with the commitments that each representative on the 
Board has agreed to contribute. The contribution made by the Municipality to COBAC for the year 
ended June 30, 2009 was $174,800. Subsequently, COBAC would obtain and provide the financial 
resources necessary for its operations from resources other than the Municipality. Finally, the 
Municipality's representation on the Board of Directors is 4 out of 17 members, or 24% of the voting 
power. 

On July 1, 2006 representatives of the Municipality and SANOS signed a 5-year lease contract for 
the facilities where SANOS is currently located for a $1 annual fee payable to the Municipality. In 
addition, the Municipality agreed to contribute $300,000 annually for fiscal years 2006-2007 and 
2007-2008 and pay the utilities until June 30, 2009. More recently, on December l, 2007 the 
Municipality granted SANOS a contract for $35,000 (to be matched by SANOS) to administer 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds to develop and implement strategies to 
promote and educate citizens about suicide. From there on, SANOS would obtain and provide the 
financial resources necessary for its operations from resources other than the Municipality. Finally, 
the Municipality occupies up to 113 of the Board of Director's seats. 

On April 18, 2007 representatives of the Municipality and CCECI signed a IO-year lease contract for 
the land and facilities comprising the Caguas Botanical and Cultural Garden for an annual fee of 
$1,000 effective April 18, 2007. The Municipality agreed to contribute (I) operation funds for 
$500,000 for each fiscal year 2007-2008 and 2008-2009; $350,000 for fiscal years 2009-2010 and 
2010-2011; $300,000 for fiscal year 2011-2012; (2) payment of utilities corresponding to the land 
and facilities included in the contract; (3) payment of the applicable insurance policies as the owner 
of the land and facilities; and ( 4) remaining funds assigned to the development of the Garden in the 
various dependencies/departments within the Municipality until June 30, 2007. From there on, 
CCECI would obtain and provide the financial resources necessary for its operations from resources 
other than the Municipality. This contract was amended October 17, 2007 to provide CCECI an 
additional $390,000 for the relocation and improvements of the Archeological Lab and other 
miscellaneous tasks. Finally, the Municipality's representation on the Board of Directors does not 
exceed the 1/3 of the total members. 

On September 3, 2003 representatives of the Caguas and other Municipalities signed a contractual 
agreement with INTECO to contribute funds; property; social, human, physical and technological 
capital from time to time. After the initial contribution, each Municipality would contribute 
approximately $1 per person annually according to the most recent Census available. The 
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Municipality of Caguas and INTECO have and will enter into contractual agreements for specific 
projects from time to time. Finally, the Municipality's representation on the Board of Directors does 
not exceed the 1/3 of the total members. 

On August 21 , 2007 the Banco de Desarrollo de la Comunidad (BDC) was incorporated as a non­
profit organization named BADECO. The plan is to expand BADECO regionally to 14 additional 
Municipalities. No contract has been signed between the Municipality of Caguas and BADECO. It is 
planned to have BADECO operating in a similar form as the organii.ations mentioned above. The 
proposed Board of Directors has not been convoked or approved. The corporation has no current 
activity. 

Housing and Rental Contracts 

The Housing Choice Voucher Program (HCVP) provides rental assistance to help very low income 
families afford decent, safe, and sanitary rental housing. 

The Municipality as a local public housing agency (PHA) is authorized under Federal and State laws 
to operate housing programs within an area or jurisdiction. The Municipality, as a PHA accepts the 
application for rental assistance, selects the applicant for admission, and issues the selected family a 
voucher confirming the family's eligibility for assistance. The family must then find and lease a 
dwelling unit suitable to the family's needs and desires in the private rental market. The PHA pays 
the owner a portion of the rent (a housing assistance payment (HAP) on behalf of the family. 

The subsidy provided by the HCVP is considered a tenant-based subsidy because when an assisted 
family moves out of a unit leased under the program, the assistance contract with the owner 
terminates and the family may move to another unit with continued rental assistance (24 CFR section 
982.1). 

HUD enters into annual contributions contracts (ACCs) with PHAs under which the Department of 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) provides funds to the PHAs to administer the programs 
locally. The PHAs enter into HAP contracts with private owners who lease their units to assisted 
families (24 CFR section 982.151 ). 

During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, the Municipality has incurred in HAP's for 
$6.7 million, in average. No significant changes are expected during subsequent fiscal year. 

11. CONTINGENCIES 

Litigation 

The Municipality is a defendant in legal matters that arise in the ordinary course of the Municipality's 
activities. With respect to pending and threatened litigation, the Municipality has reported liabilities 
of $2,322,517 in the government-wide statements for anticipated unfavorable judgments or future 
disbursements. 
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The amount presented in the total liabilities of the governmental activities in the statement of net 
assets represents the amount estimated as probable liability, which will require future available 
financial resources for its payment. The Municipality's administration and legal counsel believes that 
the ultimate liability in excess of amounts provided would not be significant. In addition, the 
Municipality is a defendant or co-defendant in several legal proceedings, which are in the discovery 
stage. Certain of these claims are covered by insurance. Legal counsel with the information currently 
available cannot determine the final outcome of these claims. As a result, the accompanying general­
purpose financial statements do not include adjustments, if any, that could result from the resolution 
of these legal proceedings. 

Federal Financial Assistance 

The Municipality receives financial assistance from the federal government in the fonn of grants or 
entitlements. The Municipality recognizes federal grant revenues when the related grant agreements 
are approved and notified by the federal agencies by written communication. All grants are subject to 
financial and compliance audits by the grantor agencies, which could result in requests for 
reimbursement by the grantor agencies for expenditures, if disallowed under the terms of the grants. 
These amounts, if any, of expenditures, which may be disallowed by the granting agencies, cannot be 
detennined at this time. The Municipality's administration believes that such disallowances, if any, 
will not have a material adverse effect on the financial position of the Municipality. 

12. HEALTHCARE COSTS 

During the year ended June 30, 2000 the Governor of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico required to 
the municipalities of Puerto Rico an annual contribution to subsidy the cost of the implementation and 
administration of the Healthcare Reform. Such contributions are required to be disbursed from 
general fund operating budget. Total contributions made by the Municipality amounted to 
approximately $7,794,000 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009. 

This Space Is Intentionally Left In Blank 
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13. RESTATEMENTS 

The Municipality has restated the beginning fund balances of funds financial statements at July 1, 
2008 to correct the following situations: 

• Inter-fund amounts previously presented for which there were no detailed subsidiaries to support 
such balances. 

• Correction of receivable amounts recorded against revenue. Since such amounts are still included 
as receivable after the soon-enough period has concluded, they should be presented as deferred 
revenue. 

• Beginning balances of different accounts as follows: 

o Elimination of receivable balances which were collected during different periods. Such 
collections were also recorded as revenue in the period instead of eliminating the receivable 
balance, therefore such duplicity must be reversed. 

o Adjusting accounts receivables based on detailed subsidiaries. 

o Elimination of deferred revenues from prior periods as the time requirement has been met. 

o Accounts payable recorded in prior years without the corresponding supporting evidence, 
therefore such effect must be reversed. 

• Accounts receivable from different periods written off which, based on subsequent analysis, it 
was detennined that such adjustment should have been by a lower amount. 

This Space Is Intentionally Left In Blank 
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The following tables summarize the effects of the situations mention above per column of the financial 
statement: 

Fund Financial Statements 

General Fund 
Correction of revenue to be presented as a deferred revenue 
Correction of accounts receivable written off 
Correction of interfund transactions not supported by subsidiaries 
Correction of prior periods accruals not reversed 
Correction of other funds deficits 

Sub-total 

Housing and Rental Program 
Correction of revenue to be presented as a deferred revenue 
Correction of interfund transactions not supported by subsidiaries 

Sub-total 

Public Residential Administration 
Correction of interfund transactions not supported by subsidiaries 

Head Start Food and Children Program 

Correction of cash balance that belongs to the Head Start pension plan 
Correction of accounts receivable previously collected 
Correction of interfund transactions not supported by subsidiaries 

Sub-total 

Capital Project Fund 
Correction of revenue to be presented as a deferred revenue 
Correction of cash balance previously expensed 
Correction of liabilities outstanding balance 
Correction of interfund transactions not supported by subsidiaries 

Sub-total 

Debt Service Fund 
Correction of accounts payable balance 
Correction of IVU cash balance originally presented in other fund 

Sub-total 

Legislative Fund 
Correction of interfund transactions not supported by subsidiaries 

Other Governmental Fund 
Correction of revenue to be presented as a deferred revenue 
Correction of accounts receivable written off 
Correction of other funds deficits 

Sub-total 

Total 
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$ 

Amount 

2,451,194 
5,208,918 

5,615,294 
(516, 130) 
1,405,426 

$ 14,164,702 

$ 327,093 
(1,045,138) 

$ (718,045) 

$ (118,478) 

$ 1,357,456 
238,602 
(2,904) 

$ 1,593,154 ======= 

$ 1,256,456 
624,000 
557,314 

3,812,415 
$ 6,250,185 ======== 

$ (513,666) 
~l,4681355l 

$ (1,982,021) 

$ (I,688,716) 

$ 4,603,256 
(2,206,475) 
p,607,9422 

$ {1,211,16ll 

$ 16,289,620 
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The Municipality has restated the beginning fund balances of governmental activities at July l, 2008 
to correct the following situations: 

• Correction of the bonds and notes outstanding balances to be presented as of June 30 instead as of 
July 2. 

• Inclusion of the bond issue costs that should be amortized over the related liability tenns. 
• Correction of liabilities of LIMS and Law No. 42 due to the Municipal Revenue Collection 

Center (CRIM) not previously recorded. 
• Elimination of legal contingencies that relates to land expropriations. 
• Inclusion of the Christmas Bonus liability from December 2008 to June 2009. 
• Elimination of the cash balance and related liability of the Head Start pension plan. 
• Elimination of the deferred federal grant revenue. 

Funds Financial Statements 
Net effect in funds financial statements 

Other Corrections Having Effect in Government-wide Only 
To correct understatement of bonds and notes outstanding debt 
Inclusion of accrued of bonds issue cost 

Inclusion of liability to the Municipal Revenue Collecion Center (CRIM) 

Correction of legal contingencies 
Inclusion of Christmans Bonus liability 
Correction of pension trust fund liability recorded within the Municipality 

Adjustment of prior year federal grant revenues 

Subtotal 
Total Government-wide Activities 

Amount 
$ 16,289,620 

$ 5,571,837 

(J ,264,391) 

3,079,361 
( 6, 126,044) 

686,443 

(1,357,456) 
(11,526,104) 
(10,936,354) 

$ 5,353,266 

The Municipality restated the beginning net assets of business type activities to correct the following: 

• Inter-fund amounts previously presented for which there were no detailed subsidiaries to support 
such balances. 

• Correction of capital assets based on subsidiaries. 
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Enterprise Funds 

Community Development Bank 
Correction of 1 iability balance 
Correction of interfund transactions not supported by subsidiaries 

MuJtitenant Buildings 
Correction of interfund transactions not supported by subsidiaries 

14. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

$ 

Amount 

(225,605) 
135,946 

$ (89,659) 
======~ 

$ 435,962 
====== 

In preparing these financial statements, the Municipality has evaluated events and transactions for 
potential recognition or disclosure through December 31, 2009, the date the financial statements were 
issued. Based on such analysis management decided to disclose the following: 

• On August 21, 2009 the Municipality entered into a Loan Agreement (the Agreement) with the 
Governmental Development Bank of Puerto Rico (the Bank) for the construction, supervision and 
improvements of various municipal public works. The Agreement provides for borrowing in the 
amount of $4,710,000, including finance charges, through July 31, 2034 (the Maturity Date) and 
shall be known as 2009 Special Obligation Bond consisting of a single denomination bond with 
maturities of July 1 of each year through 2034. Borrowings will bear interest at an annual variable 
rate of PRIME plus 1.50%. Due interests shall be paid semi-annual in January 1st and July 191 each 
year. The repayment of this liability will be charged against the Municipal Redemption Fund 
collateralized by other funding sources of the Municipality and will begin on January 2010 for the 
interests and July 2010 for principal plus interests. The Municipality will also pay legal, 
accounting, and other fees and expenses in connection with the Loan Agreement. 

• On October 6, 2009 the Municipality entered into a Loan Agreement (the Agreement) with the 
Governmental Development Bank of Puerto Rico (the Bank) for the design, acquisition and 
installation of the information technology infrastructure of the New City Hall. The Agreement 
provides for borrowing in the amount of $975,000, including finance charges, through July 31, 
2016 (the Maturity Date) and shall be known as 2009 Municipal General Obligation Notes, 
which will be issued as registered notes without coupons in denomination of $5,000 with 
maturities of July 1 of each year through 2016. Borrowings will bear interest at an annual rate 
which will not exceed the maximum interest rated authorized by law. Due interests shall be paid 
semi-annual in January I st and July I st each year. The Municipality's good faith, credit and its 
power to impose contributions will be compromised for the repayment of this liability and will 
begin on January 2010. The Municipality will also pay legal, accounting, and other fees and 
expenses in connection with the Loan Agreement. 

• On November 6, 2009 the Municipality entered into a Loan Agreement (the Agreement) with the 
Governmental Development Bank of Puerto Rico (the Bank) for the acquisition of a vehicle 
(water truck). The Agreement provides for borrowing in the amount of $255,000, including 
finance charges, through July 31, 2016 (the Maturity Date) and shall be known as 2009 Municipal 
General Obligation Notes, which will be issued as registered notes without coupons in 
denomination of $5,000 with maturities of July 1 of each year through 2016. Borrowings will 
bear interest at an annual rate which will not exceed the maximum interest rated authorized by 
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law. Due interests shall be paid semi-annual in January I st and July 1st each year. The 
Municipality's good faith, credit and its power to impose contributions will be compromised for 
the repayment of this liability and will begin on January 2010. The Municipality will also pay 
legal, accounting, and other fees and expenses in connection with the Loan Agreement. 

• On October 26, 2009 the Municipality issued the Ordinance No. 098-20 stating its intention to 
acquire the Lincoln Center Plaza Building in the amount of $10,620,000 through the issuance of 
Municipal General Obligation Bonds. Such Ordinance could not be completed in its full sense 
due to different matters. Although the Municipality still held the same position of acquiring such 
building, in order to do so the process should start all over again. Based on the available 
infonnation the outcome of such process could not be presently determined. 

15. CASH FLOW SUPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

During current year the Municipality's management restated the beginning net assets of business type 
activities to correct the situations stated below and their effects were considered within current year 
cash flow statement. 

• Inter-fund amounts previously presented, for which there were no detailed subsidiaries to support 
such balances by $435,962. 

Correction of liability balance 
Correction of intefund transactions not supported by subsidiaries 

* * * * * 
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~~~t,fJ PARISSI P.S.C. 
fa~~ Certified Public Accountants. Tax & Business Advisors 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON 
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING 
STANDARDS 

Hon. William Miranda Marin, Mayor 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Municipality of Caguas 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each 
major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund infonnation of the Municipality of Caguas (The 
Municipality) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2009 which collectively comprise the Municipality's 
basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated March 31, 2010. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. 

Internal control over financial reporting 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Municipality's internal control over financial 
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Municipality's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Municipality's internal control over financial reporting. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 
preceding paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial 
reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. However, as discussed below, we 
identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be significant 
deficiencies and other to be material weaknesses. 

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of -a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the nonnal course of perfonning their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements 
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, 
that adversely affects the Municipality's ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial 
data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a 
remote likelihood that misstatement of the Municipality's financial statements that is more that 
inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the Municipality's internal control. We consider the 
deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as findings 2009-12 
to 2009-16 in Section 2 to be significant deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting. 

------· -- -··· . - - . 
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A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that result in 
more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be 
prevented or detected by the Municipality's internal control. 

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in 
the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in the internal control 
that might be significant deficiencies and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all significant 
deficiencies that are also considered to be material weaknesses. However, we consider the deficiencies 
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as findings 2009-01 to 2009-11 
in Section 2 to be material weaknesses in internal control over financial reporting. 

Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Municipality's financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, non-compliance with which could have a direct material effect on the 
determination of the financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with 
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 
The results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards and which are described in the accompanying schedule of 
findings and questioned costs as items 2009-1 to 2009-16 in Section 2. 

The Municipality's responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the Municipality's response and, accordingly, 
we express no opinion on it. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Mayor, the Municipal Assembly, 
management, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should 
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

March 31, 2010 
San Juan, Puerto Rico 

Stamp No. 2483333 was affixed 
to the original of this report. 
License No. 88 Exp. December l , 2011 
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR 
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
OMB CIRCULAR A-133 

Hon. William Miranda Marin, Mayor 
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico 
Municipality of Caguas 

Compliance 

We have audited the compliance of the Municipality of Caguas (the Municipality) with the types of 
compliance requirements described in the U. S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 
Compliance Supplement that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 
30, 2009. The Municipality's major programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of 
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, 
regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of 
the Municipality's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Municipality's 
compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America; the standards applicable to :financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of 
States and Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 
require that we plan and perfonn the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on 
a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the 
Municipality's compliance with those requirements and perfonning such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our 
opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal detennination of the Municipality's compliance with those 
requirements. 

In our opinion, the Municipality complied in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above 
that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2009. 

Internal Control Over Compliance 

The management of the Municipality of Caguas is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective 
internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants 
applicable to federal programs. In planning and perfonning our audit, we considered the Municipality's 
internal control over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a 
major federal program in order to detennine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing an 
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opinion on compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion in the effectiveness of internal 
control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Municipality's internal control over compliance. 

A control deficiency in an entity's internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of 
a control does not allow management or employees, in the nonnal course of perfonning their assigned 
functions, to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program 
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or a combination of control deficiencies, 
that adversely affects the entity's ability to administer a federal program such that there is more than a 
remote likelihood that non-compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is 
more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the entity's internal control. 

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or a combination of significant deficiencies that results in 
more than a remote likelihood that material non-compliance with the types of compliance requirements of 
a federal program will not be prevented or detected by the entity's internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might 
be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control 
over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. 

This report is intended solely for the infonnation and use of the Mayor, the Municipal Assembly, 
management, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should 
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

March 31, 2010 
San Juan, Puerto Rico 

Stamp No. 2483334 was affixed 
to the original of this report. 
License No. 88 Exp. December l, 201 l 
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Section 1 - Summary of Auditor's Results 

Financial Statements: 

Type of auditor's report issued: 

Internal control over financing reporting: 

l . Material weakness identified? 

2. Significant deficiency (ies) that are not considered 
to be material weakness? 

Noncompliance material to financial statement noted? 

Federal awards: 

Internal control over major programs: 

1. Material weakness (es) identified? 

2. Significant deficiency(ies) that are not considered to be 
material weaknesses? 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs? 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in 
accordance with Circular A-133, Section .SIO(a) 
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Unqualified 

Yes 

Yes 

Yes 

No 

No 

Unqualified 

No 

(Continue) 
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Identification of major programs: 

CFDA Number(s) 

10.558 

14.218 

14.850 

14.871 

93.600 

93.914 

Name of Federal 
Program or Cluster 

USDA Child and Adult Care Food Program 

(passed-through of the Department of 

Education of the Commonwealth of Puerto 

Rico) 

Community Development Block Grant I 
Entitlement Grants 

Public and Indian Housing (passed-through 

of the Puerto Rico Public Housing 

Administration) 

Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher 

Head Start Administration for Youth and 

Children 

ffiV Emergency Relief Project Grant 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $789,294 

Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee? No 
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Section 2 - Financial Statement Findings - Material Weaknesses 

Finding No. 2009-1 

Accounting and Financial Data Analysis - Enterprise Funds 

)> Condition -During the audit procedures over the enterprise funds we observed the following 
conditions: 

• Incomplete accounting records. 

• Lack of detailed subsidiary over the property and equipment. 

• Lack of detailed analysis for year-end accruals. 

• Transactions are included within the Municipality Accounting System SAP only by capturing 
the internal financial statements of Banco de Desarrollo de la Comunidad (BADECO) thru a 
journal entry. No detailed information analysis was observed for this transaction. 

)> Criteria - The Law 81, Autonomous Municipalities Law, Article 6.003, Administrative Units 
Director's General Duties, states that: 

• To plan, organize, direct, coordinate and supervise activities and functions under his or her 
responsibility. 

• To coordinate their respective administrative units actions with the rest of the other Municipality's 
dependencies, especially with those that do the same function in the same functional areas. 

• To establish internal control procedures to allow the verification of compliance with qualitative 
and quantitative administrative unit's projects and activities. 

and in the Article 6.005 c, d, states that: 

• To supervise intervention and processing function over disbursements transactions; over the 
appropriations accounting, encumbrances and contracts; over collections, including 
Municipality's volume of business taxes; over property' s acquisition and disposition; over 
investment's management and control; over the preparation and issuance of financial reports and 
perform any other functions and activities related to Municipality daily financial transactions and 
any other financial concerns. 

• To keep custody of all Municipality's financial and accounting records, books and related 
documents. 

~ Cause - This was mainly caused by lack of continuous communication and exchange of the 
transactions supporting information between the Municipality Finance Department and the BADECO 
accounting personnel. Also the accounting functions are being limited to the recording of transactions 
in a cash basis of accounting without considering the accrual effect over the enterprise funds. 
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);>- Effect - This condition has the effect of creating uncertainties over the final accurate balances at the 
enterprise funds. Also, there could be errors within the financial statements due to the lack of 
analysis over the information. 

);>- Recommendation - The Municipality should assign and monitor accountable personnel of the 
accounting of the enterprise funds and enforce a periodic reconciliation over the accounting systems. 
Financial data analysis should accompany all transactions recorded and should be compiled and kept 
as a support within the main accounting system kept for these funds. 

);>- Management response - The Finance Department will assign a point person within its department to 
monitor BADECO's accounting system, which is used as an internal management tool by BADECO's 
personnel. 

Finding No. 2009-2 

Cash Accounts Bal.ances 

);>- Condition - During the examination of the cash accounts we observed various instances as detailed 
below: 

• Cash accounts with negative book balance - During our examination of the cash accounts we 
noted two accounts with negative book balances. Detailed information was provided to 
management. 

• Differences in bank reconciliations - Bank reconciliations have differences between the 
reconciled ending bank balance and general ledger. Detailed information was provided to 
management. We noted that although most differences were identified by client during the 
reconciliation process, they were not adjusted within the general ledger. 

• Differences in cash and investment accounts - Such difference arose when comparing the ending 
book balances amounts per reconciliation and with confirmation received, versus the ending 
balance per the general ledger. Detailed information was provide to management. 

• Accounts not recorded in the general ledger - We noted that some cash accounts were confirmed 
by financial institutions and recorded in the accounting books during the audit process, however, 
such accounts were not included by the client within the general ledger during the routing 
operations as of end of fiscal year. Detailed information was provided to management. 

• Account without current year activity -The account named "Emprestito $624,000" was included 
in the general ledger by its full balance ($624,000) at the end of fiscal year however, the whole 
balance was completely disbursed in prior years and such activity was not included as part of the 
Municipality's operations. 
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• CDBG deposits - We observed other deposits made in to the Community Development Block 
Grant (CDBG) account for $27,644, in which $21 ,629 belonged to Barrio Beatriz project. 

The Municipality adjusted all conditions that need adjustments to be properly recorded and presented 
within current year financial statements. 

~ Criteria - The Law 81, Autonomous Municipalities Law, Article 6.003, Administrative Units 
Director's General Duties, states that : 

• To plan, organize, direct, coordinate and supervise activities and functions under his or her 
responsibility. 

• To establish internal control procedures to allow the verification of compliance with qualitative 
and quantitative administrative unit's projects and activities. 

and in the Article 6.005 c, d, states that: 

• To supervise intervention and processing function over disbursements transactions; over the 
appropriations accounting, encumbrances and contracts; over coJlections, including 
Municipality's volume of business taxes; over property's acquisition and disposition; 
investment's management and control; over the preparation and issuance of financial reports and 
perform any other functions and activities related to Municipality daily financial transactions and 
any other financial concerns. 

• To keep custody of all Municipality's financial and accounting records, books and related 
documents . 

.);;>- Cause - The negative book balance in the cash accounts was mainly cause by issuing checks in 
excess of available balance. Also, for accounts not recorded in the general ledger, the main cause was 
that the Municipality did not have an adequate control procedures to ascertain that all transaction are 
properly recorded. Therefore, the reconciliation process was not performed for these accounts. Also, 
the supervision control activity was not completely effective over the year end closing process which 
allowed that these negative balances, the differences on amounts per reconciliation versus general 
ledger, and the lack of recording within the accounting records the activity of the accounts remained 
in the cash accounts after end of fiscal year. Finally, regarding the CDBG deposits, the finance 
personnel were not aware that this funds belongs to a different project or fund. 

~ Effect - This condition allows for an incorrect presentation of financial statements information as well 
as incorrect figures within the assets and liabilities sections and may lead the accounting infonnation 
useless in making well infonned business decisions. Also, the Municipality may be forced to engage 
in lines of credit and other financing transactions which will result in unnecessary internal costs. If 
small differences are not reconciled on a monthly basis, over time, they can build up to a significant 
amount that will be difficult to reconcile. Unreconciled differences that appear immaterial can 
obscure significant offsetting items, such as bank errors or improperly recorded transactions that 
might be a cause for investigation. 
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~ RecommendaJion - Management should correct, by adjusting or reclassifying, negative cash balances 
during the cash accounts reconciliation process on a monthly basis. The Municipality management 
must strengthen its cash management policies and procedures by comparing budget versus actual 
figures, close monitoring of amounts charged to cash accounts and projecting cash needs against 
upcoming economic compromises among others. 

~ Management response - Monthly reconciliations will be established to monitor and adjust negative 
cash balances, accordingly. The new restructure of the Treasury Department will help to achieved 
efficiently the cash management accounts. The Municipality has more than one hundred fifty accounts 
and was divided between accountable personnel. In addition, we are reconciHng all the inactive 
accounts to decide if needs to be closed. 

Finding No. 2009-3 

Determination of the Allowance for Doubtful Accounts Balance 

~ Condition -During the examination of the accounts receivable subsidiary balances (sales volume tax, 
sales tax, licenses and permits and rent), we observed the following instances: 

• Sales Volume Tax, Sales Tax and Rent- These accounts receivable balances did not include, and 
the Municipality did not perform, an account receivable allowance analysis to present such 
balances at their net realizable value as of end of year. Also, within the aged balance, there was a 
portion of $2,547,940 and $224,170 for sales volume tax and sales tax receivable, respectively, 
which were not aged. The following is the distribution of the aged balances as of June 30, 2009, 
which were dated up to 1993 : 

Year Sales Tax Volume Sales Tax (IVU) Rent 

2009 $ 4,920,886 1,370,678 -

2008 2,294,957 540,673 66,107 

2007 1,775,396 709,790 8,337 

2006 1,116,508 441,358 17,041 

2005 617,108 43,040 68,656 

Earlier - back to 1993 2,240,305 - 355,575 

Not Aged 2,547,940 224,170 -

Total $ 15,513,100 3,329,709 515,716 

• Licenses and permits - Also there was not an age distribution of such balance, rather they were 
only distributed by customer. 
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~ Criteria - The Law 81, Autonomous Municipalities Law, Article 6.005, Administrative Units 
Director's General Duties, states that: 

• To take proper means to assure the protections of Municipality's funds, securities and properties. 

• To make rigorous evaluations of Municipality's accounts receivables and certify to the Mayor 
which ones are collectable and which are not. Considering those receivables to be declared 
uncollectible by the Municipality' s Finance Director with the approval of the Municipal 
Assembly, and that the accounts should have been outstanding by at least 5 years and also 
affirmative collections procedures should have performed by the Municipality. 

~ Cause - The Municipality has not perfonned such analysis in the past and therefore was not either 
included during current year as well. This analysis was not included within the routine operations of 
the Municipality to be reviewed and adjusted periodically and it was not either enforced by upper 
level management. 

~ Effect - As a result of this condition, the valuation of accounts receivable may be incorrectly 
established, as well as the financial statement presentation. 

~ Recommendation - Management should establish a policy and document procedures to be followed 
to estimate the allowance for doubtful accounts. This documentation should be based on actual 
operating statistics and factors which are indicative of trends, such as payment history, past due 
accounts, write-offs, and the aging of the accounts receivable balances and such process must be 
properly documented within the financial data of the Municipality. This analysis will assist the 
Municipality in appropriately adjusting the allowances for changes in trends in the underlying 
accounts receivable population. And finally, the Municipality must implement a strong collection 
campaign and assess the possibility of implementing other measures to force these entities to pay past 
due amounts. Within these measures the Municipality may consider stopping services provided to 
these entities, charging interests on past due amounts, or withholding any economic amount which 
these entities may be entitled to. 

~ Management response - The Municipality will establish a policy and procedures on allowances 
based on actual operations statistics. 

Although a reserve for allowance for doubtful account has not been established, all items in arrears 
were reclassified to deferred income. Management will analyze the proper methodology to implement 
an allowance base on statistical, trending or population on the receivables of the Municipality. 

With respect to proper documentation and strong collections the Internal Revenue and Filing 
Departments was restructure. A new Tax Crime Unit was established and the recruitments of a Layer 
and Tax Specialists to the Finance Department reinforce the analyses and collectability of our 
accounts receivables. Also, the Filing department was completely restructured and we brought on 
board expertise personnel, including the Director of Archives of the Municipality. 

79 



Autonomous Municipality of Caguas 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Finding No. 2009-4 

Accounts Receivable Internal Control Tests 

~ Condition - During our audit we noted that the control procedures are not being effectively 
performed. While conducting our audit procedures over the sales volume tax, sales tax (NU), licenses 
and pennits, and rent, we noted that that many taxpayer files contained data that is either inaccurate or 
incomplete. We observed the following matters included below: 

Sales Volume Tax 

4/63 Reported to the legal division for which there was no evidence on the files. 

3 7 /63 Records within the file did not agree to each other since there was missing information in 
files . 

29/63 Income tax or financial statement was not reviewed. 

16/63 Business volume declaration was not reviewed. 

9/40 Have differences because the discount of 5% of early payment of the sales volume tax 
return was not recorded within the detailed subsidiary information. The personnel has 
knowledge of this but it has not been adjusted. 

5/40 The business volume declaration did not agree with the income tax return or financial 
statement. 

19/63 Business volume declaration not available for examination. 

28/63 Income tax return or financial statement not available for examination. 

13/63 We have differences causing the balance to be understated. 

Sales Tax (!VU) 

4/40 Business volume declaration not available for examination. 

7/40 Sales tax return not available for examination. 

9/1 3 Differences in the outstanding balances. The personnel have knowledge of this condition 
but no adjustment has been made. 

Licenses and Permits 

11/25 Cancelled check not available for examination. 

8/25 Construction Permit Notification not available for examination. 

4/25 Original receipt not available for examination. 

2/25 Detail of the cost of construction not available for examination. 

1/2 The Municipality has to adjust approximately $12,000 for an overstated balance. There is 
a letter that the Municipality accepts the overstatement, but is not yet recorded. 
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1/2 There was a difference of $32,375; no adjustment has been made within the accounting 
records. 

Receipts 

7/40 There was a difference between the Daily Receipt Journal and Bank Deposit Report. 

Rent 

213 Were at the legal division on issues pending to be resolved and such balances have not 
been reserved for financial statement purposes. 

There were other few cases from the business volume tax and sales tax missing certain data or 
information. The detail of such cases was rendered to management of the Municipality. 

~ Criteria - The Law 81 , Autonomous Municipalities Law, Article 6.003, Administrative Units 
Director's General Duties, states that: 

• To plan, organize, direct, coordinate and supervise activities and functions under his or her 
responsibility. 

• To coordinate their respective administrative units actions with the rest of the other 
Municipality's dependencies, especially with those that do the same function in the same 
functional areas. 

• To establish internal control procedures to allow the verification of compliance with qualitative 
and quantitative administrative unit's projects and activities. 

and in the Article 6.005 c, d, states that: 

• To supervise intervention and processing function over disbursements transactions; over the 
appropriations accounting, encumbrances and contracts; over collections, including 
Municipality's volume of business truces; over property' s acquisition and disposition; 
investment's management and control; over the preparation and issuance of financial reports and 
perform any other functions and activities related to the Municipality daily financial transactions 
and any other financial concerns. 

• To keep custody of all Municipality's financial and accounting records, books and related 
documents. 

~ Cause - This condition occurs because the trucpayer files and related data are not maintained in an 
orderly filing manner. Orderly filing should be maintained to ensure proper control over all supporting 
documentation. Also, the significant number and difficultness of the missing information in files 
received and the lack of sufficient personnel to reconcile these differences contributed to this 
condition. 

~ Effect - This condition reduces the probability to effectively prevent errors which in tum would 
impair the reliable preparation and recording of accurate financial information. Also, the information 
included within the subsidiary has a direct impact over the general ledger and trial balance financial 
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figures. Therefore, information used for different analysis and to evaluate perfonnance may be 
incorrectly interpreted due to the condition of the financial information included. 

)> Recommendation - The Finance Department should adopt a policy requiring monthly reconciliation 
of all accounts to their subsidiary ledgers in order to ensure the accuracy of the monthly financial 
statements and underlying subsidiary ledgers. The Municipality must develop a systematic process 
toward the reduction and complete elimination of this condition by requiring from the supervisory 
level personnel a strategy which includes the following among other steps: 

• Provide periodic training to the personnel in the front line dealing with these areas. 

• Ascertain that such training has been properly absorbed by the personnel by inquiring as to 

specific task being performed, pinpoint what if situations, etc. 

• Select on a random basis various files from the different areas at different point in time to 

ascertain correctness of information. 

• Different checkpoints along the business cycle must be established to ensure proper performance 

or to prevent or detect error at early stages of the cycle. 

• The hiring process must ensure that only highly qualified personnel are recruited to perform the 

Municipality duties. 

• Clear job responsibilities must be communicated to newly hired as well as to the actual personnel. 

• Adherence to the Municipality's policies and procedures must be encouraged. 

• Clear lines of responsibilities, authorization and supervision skills must be implemented, 

reinforced and communicated at all levels. 

• Corresponding reconciliations among the financial data must be implemented and reinforced. 

)> Management response - Internal controls will be developed and implemented in order to ensure 
periodic training of the filing area front line personnel; random checks of files from the different areas 
of the finance department; recruitment and hiring of only highly qualified personnel; communicate 
clear job responsibilities to all (new and current) personnel; implement, reinforce and communicate 
clear lines of responsibility, supervision and authority; checkpoints along the business cycle to ensure 
proper performance and prevent errors at early stages of the cycle and; enforcement of financial data 
reconciliation. Also, improvement over the internal control process will be established by reviewing 
files by random checks, and assure files are organized based on checklist provided. 
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Finding No. 2009-5 

Due From Other Funds 

» Condition - During the audit process we observed the following condition within this area as follows: 

• As per trial balance provide by client, General Fund showed a balance of $21 million in due from 
other funds at June 30, 2009 which was adjusted to approximately $12 million. It appears that the 
collection of these amounts to be returned to the General Fund has been delayed for a significant 
period of time. 

• There were no subsidiaries ledgers prepared to support the balances included within these 
accounts. Although disbursements and collections in most cases included the detail of the 
transactions, there were no detailed subsidiaries that keep track of all transactions that still 
pending to be cleared between funds. During the audit process, the Municipality began to gather 
all necessary infonnation to support such balances. 

» Criteria - The Law 81, Autonomous Municipalities Law, Article 6.003, Administrative Units 
Director's General Duties, states that: 

• To plan, organize, direct, coordinate and supervise activities and functions under his or her 
responsibility. 

• To establish internal control procedures to allow the verification of compliance with qualitative 
and quantitative administrative unit's projects and activities. 

and in the Article 6.005 d,f, states that: 

• To keep custody of all Municipality's financial and accounting records, books and related 
documents. 

• To take proper means to assure the protections of Municipality's funds, securities and properties. 

);;> Cause - The Municipality is not providing strong follow up to pending balances as to its prompt 
collection. No accountability was assigned to specific personnel as to the preparation and constant 
updating of these transactions within a detailed subsidiary. Upper level supervision did not detect 
such condition or enforce that these subsidiaries were prepared. 

);;> Effect- Municipality's cash flows would be adversely affected due to the long time elapsed between 
the disbursement of large amounts of funds and collections on them. The Municipality would have to 
incur in debt in order to supply for its cash needs. 

» Recommendation - To reduce the t ime elapsing between the disbursement of other funds receivables 
and collection of them, the Municipality must develop, establish and enforce a strict collection 
process. Also, a task force group must be appointed as to the creation of such subsidiaries to keep 
proper track of pending transactions. At the beginning, a task force group must be develop to do what 
is required to collect the outstanding balances. Subsequently, normal collection process must be 
followed and accountable personnel must be identified. Upper level follow up must be provided and 
establish a period of time and amount level over which an upper level management personnel must 
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intervene to reinforce the collection effort. Such balances must be monitored on a monthly basis to 
take corresponding actions. 

)lo- Management response - The Municipality will establish procedures to assure rapid collection among 
the funds, and will keep subsidiaries and periodic reconciliations of interfund transactions. 

A project dedicated exclusively for the collection of accounts owed that are not part of the General 
Fund was implemented. In addition, as part of the restructuring of the Finance Department, an area for 
treasury was created in order to address all type of collections; highly capable personnel in accounting 
were hired to oversee this appropriately. 

Finding No. 2009-6 

Deferred Revenue Recorded as Revenue 

)lo- Condition - We observed $8.6 million recorded as receivable during this year that in prior years were 
recorded as revenues instead of deferred revenues based on the availability of funds, as required by 
modified accrual basis for fund accounting, and therefore, audit adjustments were made to correct this 
situation during the audit process. 

• Revenue Recognition - Revenues and other governmental fund financial resource increments 
(e.g., bond issue proceeds) are recognized in the accounting period in which they become 
susceptible to accrual-that is, when they become both measurable and available to finance 
expenditures of the fiscal period. 11 Available" means collectible within the current period or soon 
enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Application of the 
"susceptibility to accrual" criteria requires judgment, consideration of the materiality of the item 
in question, and due regard for the practicality of accrual, as well as consistency in application. 

When the modified accrual basis of accounting is used, revenues resulting from nonexchange 
transactions should be recognized as follows: 

• Derived tax revenues. Recipients should recognize revenues in the period when the 
underlying exchange transaction has occurred and the resources are available. 

• Imposed nonexchange revenues--0ther than property taxes. Recipients should recognize 
revenues in the period when an enforceable legal claim has arisen and the resources are 
available. 

)lo- Criteria - The Law 81, Autonomous Municipalities Law, Article 6.003, Administrative Units 
Director's General Duties, states that: 

• To plan, organize, direct, coordinate and supervise activities and functions under his or her 
responsibility. 

• To establish internal control procedures to allow the verification of compliance with qualitative 
and quantitative administrative unit's projects and activities. 
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~ Cause - Modified accrual basis of accounting for fund accounting has not been properly applied. 
Also, in the case of the sales tax revenue, at the beginning of the next fiscal year the accounting 
system automatically reclassifies the balances included as deferred taxes as revenue without 
considering if the funds were available or not. The Municipality personnel have not implemented a 
control activity to determine which portions were not available that represents deferred revenue. 

>1- Effect - The recording of such accounts as revenue instead of deferred revenue caused the operating 
income during the fiscal year and the year-to-date fund balance to be overstated, which consequently 
affected any information and analysis derived from such financial figures. 

~ Recommendation -The proper recording of the operating activities within the Municipality is crucial 
as it is available for many different uses. The Municipality must ascertain that its personnel keep 
updated on the applicable financial accounting and reporting requirements. Therefore, periodic 
training and seminar must be provided to the respective personnel based on the required skills and 
knowledge as the activities they perform demand. 

~ Management response - Trainings and seminars will be provided and periodical audits will be made 
with quarterly closings. As previously mentioned, personnel with high accounting capabilities has 
been recruited. 

Finding No. 2009-7 

Federal Grants Receivable and Deferred Revenue 

>1- Condition - During the examination of these balances we observed that revenue balances like for 
CDBG, HOME and Head Start were recorded in a cash basis and no receivable or deferred revenue 
for federal grants were established or adjusted from the prior year amounts. Balances recorded in the 
general ledger were those from prior years that resulted from the audit process that should have been 
adjusted for collections received, however not all collections were properly applied as in the case of 
the amount identified as Indirect Costs Receivables, therefore, audit adjustments were made during 
the audit process to correct this situation. The Municipality complies with eligibility requirements to 
receive the funds, as per Governmental Accounting Standard Board (GASB) No. 33 as follows; 

• Revenue Recognition - Revenues and other governmental fund financial resource increments 
(e.g., bond issue proceeds) are recognized in the accounting period in which they become 
susceptible to accrual-that is, when they become both measurable and available to finance 
expenditures of the fiscal period. "Available" means collectible within the current period or soon 
enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Application of the 
"susceptibility to accrual" criteria requires judgment, consideration of the materiality of the item 
in question, and due regard for the practicality of accrual, as well as consistency in application. 

• When the modified accrual basis of accounting is used, revenues resulting from nonexchange 
transactions should be recognized as follows: 

• Derived tax revenues. Recipients should recognize revenues in the period when the 
underlying exchange transaction has occurred and the resources are available. 
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• Imposed nonexchange revenues - property taxes. Recipients should recognize revenues in 
accordance with NCGA Interpretation 3, as amended. 

• Imposed nonexchange revenues - other than property taxes. Recipients should recognize 
revenues in the period when an enforceable legal claim has arisen and the resources are 
available. 

• Government-mandated nonexchange transactions and voluntary nonexchange transactions. 
Recipients should recognize revenues in the period when all applicable eligibility 
requirements have been met and the resources are available. 

}> Criteria - The Law 81 , Autonomous Municipalities Law, Article 6.003, Administrative Units 
Director's General Duties, states that: 

• To plan, organize, direct, coordinate and supervise activities and functions under his or her 
responsibility. 

• To establish internal control procedures to allow the verification of compliance with qualitative 
and quantitative administrative unit's projects and activities. 

}> Cause - The Governmental Accounting Standard Board (GASB) No. 33 has not been applied over 
grants and awards funds and the modified accrual basis of accounting for fund accounting has not 
been properly applied. The Municipality personnel have not implemented a control activity to detect 
when the receivable and deferred portions of revenues are to be established and recorded. 

}> Effect - Not recording such balances will cause the operating income during the fiscal year and the 
year-to-date fund balance to be misstated, which consequently will affect any information and 
analysis derived from such financial figures. Also audit adjustments during the audit process need to 
be made to confonn to generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). 

}> Recommendation - The proper recording of the operating activities within the Municipality is crucial 
as it is available for many different uses. The Municipality must ascertain that its personnel keep 
updated on the applicable financial accounting and reporting requirements. Therefore, periodic 
training and seminar must be provided to the respective personnel based on the required skills and 
knowledge as the activities they perfonn demand. Also, these duties must be established within the 
monthly activities and be properly supervised to ascertain that such transactions are properly captured 
within the Municipality's financial records. 

}> Management response - A group of accountants were recruited with knowledge to perform 
accounting activities. Training and seminars were provided. In addition, we have currently contracted 
a consulting firm to evaluate and reorganize the procedures within our department. 
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Finding No. 2009-8 

Completeness Over Long Term Debts and Related Withholdings bv the Centro de Recaudaciones de 
Ingresos Municipales (CRIM) 

);> Condition - During our audit process over the long tenn debt, we observed the following conditions: 

• As part of the debt confinnation process to other governmental agencies, we received a confinned 
debt balances from the Centro de Recaudaciones de Ingresos Municipales (CRIM) regarding Law 
#42 (Law No. 42 dated January 26, 2000) by $ 1,701,014 and Land lnfonnation Management 
System (LIMS) (Law No. 235 dated August 30, 2000) by $1,170,896 that were related from prior 
years regarding payments plans that were not registered in the Municipality accounting records 
and financial statements, therefore, audit adjustments were made during the audit process to 
correct this situation. 

• Based on the confirmation received from Government Development Bank (GDB) and as per their 
amortization tables provided, the totaJ debt service for 2009 was approximately $6,220,000, 
however, the withholding from the CRIM amounted to approximately $6,586,000. Such difference 
was adjusted at the finaJ CRIM liquidation. 

);> Criteria -The Law 81, Autonomous Municipalities Law, Article 6.003, Administrative Units 
Director's General Duties, states that: 

• To plan, organize, direct, coordinate and supervise activities and functions under his or her 
responsibility. 

• To establish internal control procedures to allow the verification of compliance with qualitative 
and quantitative administrative unit's projects and activities. 

);> Cause - Municipality's personnel do not account or track a list of long term debts and the related 
payments schedules. The withholdings by the CRIM remittance were being recorded as expenses 
different from the debt service principal and interest. 

);> Effect - This condition may have the effect of issuing incomplete or misstated financial reports to 
external users. Decision based on such information might have been different had such financial 
information included such debt balances from the CRIM. Also, significant differences between the 
actual and required withholdings for debt services may bring unexpected situations that need to be 
considered in the following year operating budget. 

);> Recommendation - The Municipality should perform a compilation of all debts incurred and 
ascertain that all those debts are properly reflected within the Municipality accounting records. Also, 
whenever a debt is incurred, a payment plan is provided which shall be used to determine the debt 
service and that the withholdings being made tie to such payment schedules. Differences should be 
promptly investigated. Also, periodic monitoring of such debt service must be made as such payment 
plans vary year after year. Such changes must be acknowledged by the Municipality to adjust its debt 
service requirement accordingly. 
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~ Management response - A group of accountants were recruited with knowledge to perfonn these 
accounting activities. In addition, we have the service in house of the Director of Municipality 
Finances of the Government Development Bank which will be in charge of monitor all debts 
compilations, withholdings, amortization and payments schedules in according to our book balances. 
Also, we have established a direct communication with the Centro de Recaudaciones de lngresos 
Municipales (CRIM) to immediately revise any discrepancy that might occur. Trainings and seminars 
will be provided to our personnel. 

Finding No. 2009-9 

Fund Balance 

~ Condition - The trial balance provided to commence the 2009 audit process had a total difference of 
$3,594,104 in the General Fund and an aggregated total difference of $1,411,276 when compared the 
2008 ending fund balance with the 2009 beginning fund balance, therefore, audit adjustments were 
made during the audit process to correct this situation. 

~ Criteria - The Law 81, Autonomous Municipalities Law, Article 6.003, Administrative Units 
Director's General Duties, states that: 

• To plan, organize, direct, coordinate and supervise activities and functions under his or her 
responsibility. 

• To establish internal control procedures to allow the verification of compliance with qualitative 
and quantitative administrative unit's projects and activities. 

~ Cause - The cause of this condition mainly resides with the fact that the Municipality did not post all 
prior year audit adjusting journal entries at the conclusion of the 2008 audit process. 

~ Effect - Differences arose during current year causing the beginning and ending fund balances to be 
out of balance. Also, such difference means that other accounts which are not identified might be 
potentially misstated. Such condition can also cause that analysis and interpretations made out of 
such accounts may be misled. 

~ Recommendation - We recommend the client to reconcile ending balances in their accounting 
records with the audited balances. Any difference must be investigated and adjusted promptly, since 
the later, the harder to reconcile. Also, no direct posting to the equity account could be allowed, only 
by authorized personnel, and a proper tracking must be kept to reconcile balances. 

~ Management response - Management is taking all the necessary steps to reconcile ending balance to 
adjust accordingly and promptly any discrepancy it might appears. Nonetheless, additional alternative 
procedure has been established by the Finance Department to assure the integrity of the audited 
ending balances. Measurements in the infonnation systems have been under discussion and 
programming would be needed to prevent any posting to the equity account without authorization. 
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Finding No. 2009-10 

Other Revenue 

~ Condition - We observed during the examination of the other revenue account that transactions 
actually being recorded within this account included approximately $13.2 million in debt proceeds 
and $1.7 million in sales volume tax transactions. These amounts were incorrectly recorded in the 
other revenue account. Such transactions should have been recorded within their respective accounts, 
therefore, corresponding reclassifications were made during the audit process. 

~ Criteria - The Law 81, Autonomous Municipalities Law, Article 6.003, Administrative Units 
Director's General Duties, states that : 

• To plan, organize, direct, coordinate and supervise activities and functions under his or her 
responsibility. 

• To establish internal control procedures to allow the verification of compliance with qualitative 
and quantitative administrative unit's projects and activities. 

~ Cause - The Municipality has been customarily recording such transactions within this account as 
they occur during the year. The front line personnel coding these transactions should be instructed to 
this type of error. The upper supervisory level as well as the internal control structure has not 
complaint such recording process for which continuance occurs over the years. 

~ Effect -The corresponding sales tax and sales volume tax account were understated by the amount 
recorded within the other revenue account. Although in the aggregate the total Municipality's 
revenue was not misstated, it was actually misstated by category. The sales tax and sales volume tax 
are two of the principal revenue source of the Municipality from which constant analysis are derived 
on a regular basis. Such analysis lacks a portion of their transaction due to their misclassification. 

~ Recommendation - Periodic review and monitoring of the other revenue account must be performed 
and a detail transaction examination must be perf onned to determined if significant or sensitive 
information was being recorded within these account that need to be reclassified. A specific person 
must be set accountable of such duty and include such monitoring with its monthly activities. Direct 
instructions and guidance must be provided to the front level personnel as to which type of transaction 
are allowed to be recorded within the other revenue account and which need to be posted to a specific 
revenue accounts. 

~ Management response - With the recruitment already made of thoroughness and more experienced 
personnel, this area will be covered. We have made also changes in Director and Supervisory levels 
within the Finance Department to reassure and reinforce the accounting department, including but not 
limited to internal controls procedures. 
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Finding No. 2009-11 

Prior Year Expenditures 

~ Condition - The trial balance provided to commence the 2009 audit process included a financial 
statement line item identified as prior year expenditures with a total balance of $27.9 million. Such 
balance were supposed to be distributed through the current year expenditures accounts, therefore, 
corresponding reclassifications were made during the audit process to correct this situation. 

~ Criteria - The Law 81, Autonomous Municipalities Law, Article 6.003, Administrative Units 
Director's General Duties, states that: 

• To plan, organize, direct, coordinate and supervise activities and functions under his or her 
responsibility. 

• To establish internal control procedures to allow the verification of compliance with qualitative 
and quantitative administrative unit' s projects and activities. 

and in the Article 6.005 d, states that: 

• To keep custody of all Municipality's financial and accounting records, books and related 
documents. 

~ Cause - Accounting system was set up to conform to regulatory agency's accounting procedures, 
which classify as prior year expenditures those expenditures which were budgeted from prior fiscal 
years. 

);>- Effect - There were unidentified accounts within the current year trial balance which were potentially 
misstated. Such condition can also cause that analysis and interpretations made out of such accounts 
may be misled due to missing transactions pending to be recorded or others recorded in excess. 

~ Recommendation - The Municipality must implement a strategy in which all expenditures are posted 
to the corresponding accounts. As soon as the new fiscal year begins these types of accounts must be 
reviewed and subsequently must be monitored periodically to ascertain that no balances remain within 
these accounts. A specific person must be set accountable of such duty and include such monitoring 
with its monthly activities. 

~ Management response - The Municipality will identify SAP reports that control prior year 
expenditures and will perform periodical internal audits. 
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Section 2 - Financial Statement Findings - Significant Deficiencies 

Finding No. 2009-12 

New General Ledger Accounts Created 

~ Condition - During the examination of the current year trial balance we found that a significant 
amount of general ledger accounts were created, and transactions and activity were included therein. 
These accounts were identified with number 99 for 2009. The previous year balance of these 
accounts was included in a different accounts identified with number 00. 

~ Criteria - The Law 81, Autonomous Municipalities Law, Article 6.003, Administrative Units 
Director's General Duties, states that: 

• To plan, organize, direct, coordinate and supervise activities and functions under his or her 
responsibility. 

• To establish internal control procedures to allow the verification of compliance with qualitative 
and quantitative administrative unit's projects and activities. 

~ Cause - Accounts were created for new program year budgets. 

~ Effect - The new accounts created during 2009 need to be grouped to the corresponding financial 
statement line items during the audit. During this process, certain accounts may be grouped to 
different financial statement line items, which impair and complicates the performing of comparative 
analysis from 2008 to 2009. When changes are made on a year-to-year basis, a meaningful 
comparison of current period performance with budgeted performance or with prior year operating 
results is very difficult to obtain. This condition will not allow that performance analysis be performed 
by anybody else besides the person which usually working with these accounts. Also, additional time 
was necessary form part of the client and auditors to correct such condition. 

~ Recommendaiion - Retaining unnecessary accounts in the general ledger and chart of accounts, 
especially accounts that are similar to others, can lead to confusion and inaccuracy in posting 
transactions or creating journal entries. Also, undue time must be spent reconciling the contents of 
small balance accounts. We recommend that the general ledger chart of accounts be periodically 
reviewed, that unused accounts be eliminated, and that small balances in seldom-used accounts be 
merged into similar larger, more active ones. 

~ Management response - The Municipality will review the accounting software data entry process. 

Finding No. 2009-13 

Kev Financial Activities Concentrated on a Single Person 

~ Condition - During current year audit we observed that the key activities of the finance department of 
the Municipality are largely dependent on the knowledge of a few key employees who perfonn 
critical financial and operational tasks. Such activities could not be delegated to alternate personnel 
since appropriate training has not being perfonned. 
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);;> Criteria - The Law 81, Autonomous Municipalities Law, Article 6.003, Administrative Units 
Director's General Duties, states that: 

• To establish internal control procedures to allow the verification of compliance with qualitative 
and quantitative administrative unit's projects and activities. 

);;> Cause - Due to continuous activities on the day to day operation, a cross-training of 
accounting/fmance activities to alternate personnel does not occur on a regular basis. Also it has not 
being enforced by the corresponding management level to train alternate personnel to prevent 
unexpected operations processing stoppage or delay. 

);;> Effect - The Municipality operating efficiency end effectiveness over the financial area could be 
impaired in case of employee turnover within critical areas of the organization. 

);;> Recommendation - Training and corresponding seminar regarding the Municipality critical operating 
and financial areas should be provided to alternate personnel. In the event of employee turnover, a 
well trained employee will provide management with increased assurance that transactions and 
operations will keep its pace and the recording will be consistently followed. 

~ Management response - More than 90% of the finance department personnel were trained in their 
respective areas. The training was offered from October 23rd thru the 30th and consisted on 4 and 8 
hours trainings on the different areas o the SAP system. Training modules were developed to ensure 
that newly hired personnel can learn their respective area when they are hired without having to wait 
for the training to be offered. Trainings will be repeated February 20 l 0 in order to capture the 
personnel that did not attend the first round of trainings and to provide the opportunity to the 
personnel that already attended the seminars to assist just in case they still see the need to receive 
more training. All supervisors attended their respective session in addition to the other areas to ensure 
SAP cross training as well as to gain the understanding of how their areas affect other areas depending 
on how the system is utilized. 

Finding No. 2009-14 

Accrual Balance of Sick and Leave o(Absence 

~ Condition - During the examination of the liability balance regarding employee's compensated 
absences, we observed in 5 cases, mathematical errors in the manual cards used to record the roll­
forward activities of such balances. Manual cards included footing errors which were corrected during 
the audit process. 

» Criteria - The Law 81, Autonomous Municipalities Law, Article 6.003, Administrative Units 
Director's General Duties, states that: 

• To plan, organize, direct, coordinate and supervise activities and functions under his or her 
responsibility. 
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• To establish internal control procedures to allow the verification of compliance with qualitative 
and quantitative administrative unit's projects and activities. 

~ Cause - Balances were manually computed on the employees that work outside of the Municipality's 
headquarters facilities. These employees's compensated absences running balances are not integrated 
in an automated system like the rest of the Municipality's employees. 

~ Effect - Municipality's compensated absences debt may be over or understated. Consequently the 
balances to be liquidated to the respective employees could also have the same effect. Employees 
could be over or under paid. 

~ Recommendation - The Municipality must develop a procedure to ascertain that such balances are 
properly calculated and correctly included within the Municipality's accounting system. A written 
procedure as well as checklist to ascertain accuracy and completeness could be provided to the 
corresponding personnel in charge of such duties and proper supervision must be provided. 

~ Management response - The Municipality recommended to include those employees in ITS System. 

Finding No. 2009-15 

Account Receivable - CRIM Liquidation 

~ Condition - During the audit process over the receivable balances, we observed a balance of 
$202,276 recorded as a receivable regarding the 2008 CRIM liquidating balance. Such amount was 
fully collected by the Municipality as of end of fiscal year, therefore, audit adjustments were made 
during the audit process to correct this situation. 

~ Criteria - The Law 81 , Autonomous Municipalities Law, Article 6.003, Administrative Units 
Director's General Duties, states that : 

• To plan, organize, direct, coordinate and supervise activities and functions under his or her 
responsibility. 

• To establish internal control procedures to allow the verification of compliance with qualitative 
and quantitative administrative unit's projects and activities. 

~ Cause - The Municipality posted the transaction to an incorrect general ledger account, therefore, the 
account receivable balance remained for the subsequent fiscal year. 

~ Effect - Such condition has an adverse effect over the financial reporting of the Municipality as the 
total operating transactions were not complete within the accounting records as of end of fiscal year. 
Therefore, there may be general ledger accounts potentially misstated from which constant analysis 
are derived. Such analysis lacks a portion of their transactions due to the incorrect recording. 
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)> Recommendation - The Municipality must ascertain that all transactions are completely and 
accurately recorded. Control activities must be enabled at the closing process to detect such 
transactions. Also, these duties must be properly supervised to ascertain that such transactions are 
properly captured within the Municipality's operations. 

)> Management response - As mentioned in the finding 2009-08 the Municipality has taken a proactive 
approach to ascertain that all accounting transactions are properly recorded. 

Finding No. 2009-16 

Roll-forward of Property and Equipment - Enterprise Funds 

)> Condition - During the examination of the property and equipment area we noted that the roll­
forward information regarding the property, plant and equipment of the enterprise funds was not 
maintained on a regular basis by the Municipality's personnel. 

)> Criteria - The Law 81, Autonomous Municipalities Law, Article 6.003, Administrative Units 
Director's General Duties, states that : 
• To plan, organize, direct, coordinate and supervise activities and functions under his or her 

responsibility. 

• To establish internal control procedures to allow the e verification of compliance with qualitative 
and quantitative administrative unit's projects and activities. 

and in the Article 6.005 d, states that: 

• To keep custody of all municipalities' financial and accounting records, books and related 
documents. 

)> Cause - The cause for this condition was that such information was provided by the auditors in prior 
years and subsequently adjusted by the client in its accounting records. 

)> Effect - There was no periodic monitoring of these accounts for which actual transactions as to 
purchases, retirements, additions to construction in progress, transfers from construction in progress to 
completed property, and finally the actual depreciation expense have not being recorded within the 
accounting records. Information provided from or derived from these accounts was misleading. Also 
no proper safeguarding procedures were kept over these properties as no periodic monitoring was 
provided. 

)> Recommendation - The Municipality must implement a process in which these accounts are periodic 
monitored and adjusted accordingly to reflect actual balances and conditions. Direct communication 
must be established with the personnel in the outfield as engineers, program directors and so forth in 
order to receive actual infonnation as soon as it occurs to adjust the corresponding balances. A 
specific person must be set accountable of such duty and include such monitoring with its monthly 
activities. Periodic monitoring from the supervisory level must be implemented to enforce such 
reconciliation process. 
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Autonomous Municipality ofCaguas 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 

~ Management response - As part of the whole restructure and reengineering of the Finance 
Department the unit of the fixed assets management was reinforced with additional personnel with the 
require capabilities and expertise. In addition the policies and procedures will be revised and 
monitored periodically to identify any discrepancy immediately. 

***** 
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Section 3 - Federal Awards Findings and Questioned Costs 

No findings noted during this fiscal year 2009. 

96 



Autonomous Municipality o/Caguas 
Schedule of Expendihues of Federal Awards 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 

Federal Grantor Program Tille 

U.S. Department of Agriculture Oiild and Adult Care Food Program (Pass-through the 

Department of Education of the Conunonwealth of Puerto Ricol 

U.S. Department ofHealth and 
Human Services Head Start Program 

HIV Emergency Relief Project Grant 

Oiild Care and Development Block Grant (Pass 
through the Department of the Family of the Corrunon 
~th of Puerto Rico) 

Geriattic Elderly Care Program (Pass through the Departm~t of 
the Famil:z: of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico} 

U.S. Depe.rtrnent of Housing and 
Urban Development Public and Indian Housing (Pass-through the PR Department of 

Housin2 for the Administration of Public Housi"2 

Community Development Block Grant/Entitlement 
Grants 

Emergency Shelter Grants Program 

HOME Investment Partnerships Program 

Section 8 Housing Oloice Vouchers 

U.S. Department of Justice Weed and Seed 

U.S. Department of Homeland 
Security Homeland Security Grant Program (Pass through the 

Public Security Affain Office of the Commonwealth 
of Puerto Rico 

Total ExPenditures 

See notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. 
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Federal CFDA 
Number EJ!!!:Dditures 

10.558 $ 1,108,936 

93.600 10,486,421 

93.914 1,421 ,272 

93.575 536,653 

93.044 275,821 

14.850 991,947 

14.218 2,708,715 

14.231 90,661 

14.239 524,910 

14.871 7,769,672 

16.595 60,750 

97.067 334,045 

$ 26,309,803 



Autonomous Municipality of Caguas 
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 

t. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of 
Autonomous Municipality of Caguas and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. 
The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-
133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts 
presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the 
basic financial statements. 

2. SUBRECIPIENTS 

During fiscal year 2008-09, the Municipality disbursed $1,039,907 to sub-recipients for the realization 
of healthcare, public service, and community development projects. The following entities received 
sub-awards from the Municipality's federal financial assistance programs: 

Federal Program 

HN Emergency Relief Project 
Grants 

Subtotal 

Emergency Shelter Grant 

Subtotal 

Community Development Block 
Grant Entitlement Grants 
Subtotal 

Total 

Sub-receipient Entities 

Hogar CREA - Distrito de Juncos 

PRCONCRA 

AP SAPS 

Lucha contra! el SIDA, Inc. 

Inciativa Comunitaria de Investigaci6n 

Gurabo Community Health Center, Inc. 

Corporaci6n de Servicios de Salud y Medicina 
A vanz.ada ( COSSMA) 

La Perla de Gran Precio 

Casa San Gerardo, Inc. 

Proyecto Matria 

Centro Cllnico Nuevas Actitudes (CCNA) 

Hogar Resurrecci6n 

Fundaci6n de Desarrollo Comunal (FUNDESCO) 

HogarCREA 

Corporaci6n Milagros de Amor 

Corporaci6n de Salud Aseguradora 
por Nuestra Organizaci6n Solidaria, Inc. (SANOS) 
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2008-09 
Disbursements 

$ 232,887 

17,939 

78,087 

35,559 

12,381 

441,000 

8,432 

28,952 
855,237 

16,040 

18,981 

16,041 

9,600 

12,041 

6,967 

20,000 
99670 

85,000 
85 000 

$ 1,039,907 



Autonomous Municipality of Caguas 
Summary of Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 

REPORT ON THE STATUS OF UNCORRECTED MATERIAL FINDINGS AND 
RECOMMENDATIONS FROM PRIOR AUDITS THAT AFFECT THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENT AUDIT AS REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

Finding 2008-01 

Audit Finding Description: 

During our audit work, we noted new debt included in the bank confirmation but not recognized in the 
general ledger. 

Audit Finding Status: 
Management subsequently determined that the adjustment on which this finding was based did not 
proceed. Management considered this matter as resolved. 

Finding 2008-02 

Audit Finding Description: 

We noted that the Municipality does not receive the subsidiary detail of construction in progress and 
finished projects from the Public Work Department to make the necessary adjustments in the general 
ledger. 

Audit Finding Status: 
Corrective action was taken 
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Autonomous Municipality of Caguas 
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2009 

3. RELATIONSHIP TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

A reconciliation of the expenditures reported in the accompanying Statement of Revenues, Expenses 
and Changes in Fund Balance of the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher to the related amount in the 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is as follows: 

Descrip_tioo 

Total Section 8 expenditures per Modified Accrual 
Basis of Accounting in accordance to the Statement of 
Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance 
of the Municipality's Basic Financial Statements 

Plus: Unexpended portion of the Section 8 Annual 
Budget grant approved by HUD to the Municipality 
during the vear ended June 30. 2009. 

Total Section 8 expenses per Schedule of Expenditures 
of Federal Awards as reQuired bv HUD 
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Amount 

$ 7,376,436 

393z.236 

$ 7,769,672 


